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To drive for funity: and excellence of the construction
industry of Hong Kong
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To strengthen the sustainability of the construction
industry in Hong Kong by providing a communications
platform, striving for continuous improvement, increasing
awareness of health and safety, as well as improving
skills development.
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Chairman’s

Message
THEFE

| am honoured to be appointed by the Secretary

for Development as the new Chairman of the

Construction Industry Council (CIC) and to have the

opportunity to work together with other council

members of the CIC to serve the construction

industry of Hong Kong. | am pleased to present

my first annual report — Construction Industry

Council Annual Report 2015.

AANFERERERBRAEZER —EREE

XEQIE BREE—

FREXZENE I

MEBEBRER - BUEXIRAAERNENDFR—
(BEXRG205FEFR) -

Since the establishment of the CIC in
2007, exemplary results were
achieved under the leadership of the
two former chairmen, Mr. Keith KERR
and Ir LEE Shing-see, and their
members, laying a solid foundation
for our future work. We show our
heartfelt thanks to them.

The Honourable LEUNG Chun-ying,
Chief Executive of HKSAR, published
his fourth Policy Address on 13
January 2016, outlining a detailed
blueprint for the future development
of Hong Kong. A smooth
implementation of it will bring
enormous business opportunities to
Hong Kong’s construction industry,
and build a good momentum for
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Chairman, Construction Industry Council #£ & %% & F &

future development. We look
forward to the Legislative Council’s
of the

funding and the implementation of

imminent approval related
the development plans, which are
vital for the healthy growth of the
construction industry.

President XI Jinping put forward the
development strategies of the “Belt
and Road Initiative” in the “13th
Five-Year Plan of the People’s
Republic of China”,
provide unprecedented opportunities

which  will

for long-term development of the
Hong Kong construction industry.

In order to effectively implement the
development projects mentioned in
the Policy Address and successfully

meet the challenges brought upon by
the “Belt and Road Initiative”, the
Hong Kong construction industry
must be well prepared, or will only
increase social and economic costs,
losing this
opportunity to uplift its capability

and risk pivotal

and competitiveness.

"It takes ten years to grow a tree but
a lifetime to cultivate a person.”
Whether an industry can sustain its
development or not, is dependent
upon the quality of people in that
industry. In order to grab at future
opportunities, the Hong Kong
construction industry has to develop
a pool of talent and attract more

talented people to join.
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We already have a multi-national
team participating in local
development projects and also the
“Belt and Road Initiative” will only
bring overseas project opportunities.
The younger generation of our
industry leaders have to possess
international vision; our design and
construction management
professionals need to have the
knowledge and capability to design
and manage large scale international
projects, allowing them to compete

in the international arena.

The frontline construction workers
who are mainly responsible for
solving local construction issues need
to be not only skilful in their
respective trades, but also need to be
knowledgeable in the underlying
skill

innovation as well as

principles, to facilitate
improvement,
safe construction.
Over

the years, the working

environment at Hong Kong's
construction sites and site safety
have greatly improved, yet compared
to other industries, there is still a

gap. It is necessary for us to
continue to improve, so that young
their

receptive to joining the construction

people and families are

industry as their lifelong career.

Chairman’s Message

TRFE

The wages of skilled construction
workers are generally attractive,
however, newly joined workers for

some trades still do not receive
competitive wages during training,
which directly affects the intentions
of young people to join. Manpower
training is an indispensible long-term

investment for the industry.

Most construction workers are hired
by subcontractors on the basis of
daily wages, which does not allow
them to enjoy most of the benefits
that monthly paid employees in other
receive, such as

industries may

recreational activities, on-the-job
This

affects their sense of belonging to

training opportunities, etc.

the industry and their well being.
The industry has to work together to
improve workers’ quality of life, and
build a healthy and positive image
for the construction industry.

Hong Kong is now one of the top
with the highest
construction cost in the world. High

three cities

construction cost hinders
development of the society and
people’s livelihood. It signals that
there is deficiency in our system,

which needs improvement.
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Construction is an important industry
of Hong Kong. It employs a large
number of people, and covers a wide
range of aspects. Problems cannot be
solved solely by CIC. We look
forward to working together with
stakeholders of the construction
industry towards cultivating a more
efficient, more skilful and more
energetic team of construction
practitioners, and towards developing
a more safe, more competitive, more
innovative, and more environmentally
friendly construction industry.

Chairman’s Message
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Executive Director’s

Report
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In 2015, the Construction Industry Council
marked eight years of service to Hong Kong.

BEA20159F @ @it ¥ze

ERTERBNFZA

mINJEFEMXCEEHRRERXRMER -

Ir Dr. TO Wing, Christopher
BY R LT

Executive Director, Construction Industry Council FZi###5 & #7488

The number eight in Chinese culture
has long been associated with
prosperity and good fortune, and to
my mind the Council has amply lived
up to that expectation.

Increasing its value to the
construction industry year by year, it
is contributing significantly to the
city’s continued economic health and
prosperity.

Since the early years after the
Council was established in 2007,
when many of our initial efforts were
necessarily directed towards
establishing practices and procedures,
we are now able to focus on driving
the industry forward into a more
sustainable and professional era. With
this in mind, we designated 2015 as
‘A Year of Transformation’.
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Upgrading skills, building new
career paths

A good example is the Advanced
Construction Manpower Training
Scheme (ACMTS), which we
launched in September 2015 as a
pilot operation following extensive
discussions with the Government,
legislators and industry stakeholders.
The ACMTS provides a fast track
method for semi-skilled workers to
become master craftsmen, either
through structured on-the-job
training in the case of those with
limited experience, or classroom and
workshop training for more practised
hands.

This is an important milestone in our
efforts to relieve the industry’s
current shortage of skilled workers,
as well as give newcomers to the
industry more structured career
paths. It also complements the
Government’s directives in this area,
following the implementation of the
Construction Workers Registration
(Amendment) Ordinance in April
2015 and the full introduction of its
‘designated workers for designated
skills” provisions in April 2017.

During 2015, we took a number of
publicity initiatives to inform industry

employees of these important
operational changes, including
briefings, site talks and a TV

advertising campaign promoting the
new senior workers registration
arrangement and trade tests. We also
launched the first phase of a new
Construction Workers' Registration
System, under which contractors are
required to use a new ClC-developed

Executive Director’s Report
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app and Android card-reading device
to collect and submit Daily
Attendance Records.

Meanwhile, the CIC is implementing
a variety of measures to uplift the
image of the industry in order to
attract new talent and retain existing
workers, especially among the
younger generation who might not
see construction as providing a clear
career path. For example, we are
working with the Vocational Training
Council and our overseas industry
counterparts to offer a Diploma in
Vocational Education course that
will have mutual recognition
internationally, so that it will give
successful trainees the opportunity to
work overseas in the future if they
wish.

The CIC also took the opportunity to
participate in the WorldSkills Sao
Paulo 2015 contest to enhance the
professional image of Hong Kong's
construction workers, and we were
delighted that one of our four-
person delegation returned with a
Medallion of Excellence.

Creating a cleaner, safer
workplace experience

Another important element of
uplifting the industry’s appeal to
newcomers is the need to make the
site working environment a lot
cleaner and more attractive than it
has been in the past. During 2015
we have further enhanced our model
training site in Tai Po so that it truly
does provide a ‘best of the best’
model for what we would like to see
the industry adopting citywide over
the next few years. This extends right
to the level of lockers, access cards,
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shower facilities, safe passage
markers and even the use of RFID
codes for fast and readily trackable
access to materials. We are conscious
that old ways of doing things have
little appeal for today's fast-paced
young generation, so we need to find
methods of relating to them more
effectively and getting them excited
about the career journey ahead.

Especially important in this regard is
the application of advanced
technologies, in particular Building
Information Modelling (BIM), to
project design and construction. In
March 2015, following the success of
our BIM Year 2014, we presented the
inaugural BIM Excellence Awards to
20 companies and individuals who
have been spearheading the local
industry’s harnessing of BIM
technology and processes in the
pursuit of project excellence.

We are also developing a tailor-made
BIM standard for Hong Kong and
since the start of 2016, have opened
a dedicated BIM Centre at our
Kowloon Bay Training Centre to help
CIC stakeholders and trainees learn
more about BIM and explore 3-D
building modelling techniques for
themselves. Our virtual Tower Crane
Simulator, developed with the
University of Hong Kong, was
recognised in the 2015 Hong Kong
ICT Awards.

Exploring and promoting
innovation

Equally crucial to CIC and the
successful development of our
industry is exploring and promoting
innovation. As | observed in one of
our member newsletters, technology

signed a

Executive Director’s Report
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and innovation is no longer the icing
on the cake but an indispensable
ingredient of it. It is encouraging to
note that The Honourable LEUNG
Chun-ying, Chief Executive of HKSAR
has also highlighted the importance
of innovation in his Policy Address,
and that the Government’'s new
Innovation & Technology Bureau is
now fully operational at last.

In April 2015 we heralded this by
launching the CIC Innovation

Awards, judged by a distinguished

local and international panel of
experts and offering a grand prize of
HK$300,000. The awards created
much excitement in the industry and

we were delighted to have the

opportunity of holding December’s
presentation ceremony in
Government House, with the Chief
Executive attending in person to
present prizes to the winners.

In August we organised a CIC
Innovation Tour to Singapore and
Malaysia, meeting representatives

from ten government and statutory

bodies in these two countries to
exchange knowledge of best
practices and development strategies
in areas such as manpower training,
health and safety, productivity,
research and sustainability. We also
Memorandum of
Understanding with the Construction
Industry Development Board of

Malaysia (CIDB) on further co-
operation. Meanwhile we received
ten visiting delegations from

Mainland China, the UK, Malaysia
and Thailand.
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Research is another crucial element
of our efforts to prepare Hong
Kong’s construction industry for the
challenges ahead. In 2015 we
initiated or supported a total of 34
research projects in conjunction with
local universities and industry bodies,
the majority directed towards green
building and sustainability issues.
These ranged in nature from studies
into more energy-efficient building
materials to the fundamental
question of finding and testing
substitutes for river sand, an
essential constituent of concrete,
which is coming under increasingly
short supply now that Mainland
China is reducing its export.

Tackling carbon emissions
Environmental protection issues
continue to be a major focus of the
CIC's work, especially with China
having committed to a schedule of
carbon reductions under the 2015
Paris Agreement on climate change.
We are progressively introducing a
Carbon Labelling Scheme, which will
provide a comprehensive database of
building materials and processes to
enable our stakeholders to check the
carbon emissions or neutrality of their
projects. During the year, we
certified 16 new products under this
scheme and received seven further
applications for evaluation from local
and overseas suppliers or
contractors.

We also co-operated with the Hong
Kong Green Building Council (GBC) to
co-host the World GBC Congress in
Hong Kong from 27-31 October, and
will join them again to host the next
World Sustainable Built Environment
Conference in June 2017.

tiling and

Executive Director’s Report
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Meanwhile our ZCB, Hong Kong's

first zero carbon building, in
Kowloon Bay continues to attract
much interest from industry

stakeholders and the public. During

2015 we made a number of
enhancements to the facilities,
including the completion of an eco-
lighting system on the roof and

facade to showcase energy-efficient

LED lighting. We also opened a
brand new Bamboo Pavilion on the
site to demonstrate the evolution of

traditional Chinese craftsmanship and

bamboo’s potential for innovative
contemporary architectural
applications. I'm delighted to report

that ZCB achieved energy-positive

status in 2015, generating more
energy than its operations
consumed.

Strengthening our training
services

While helping the construction

industry address these new
challenges, we remain deeply
conscious of the current difficulties
many of our stakeholders face in
recruiting sufficient numbers of
skilled workers. In total during 2015,
more than 24,000 workers
undertook training courses of
different types, either through the
CIC's own training centres or

through collaborative training and

enhanced trade testing schemes with
industry partners. We also completed
renovations to existing training

facilities in Kowloon Bay, Tai Po and
Aberdeen,
training ground in Kowloon Bay with

and opened a new

a focus on the plumbing, plastering,
scaffolding trades. In
addition, we launched a new Skills
Enhancement Course for Ethnic
Minorities.
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At the same time, we are stepping
up efforts to attract new talent to
the industry both from school-leavers
and from other sectors. Our
initiatives in this area during 2015
included 11 job fairs, 14 roadshows
at shopping malls and railway
stations, 18 other exhibitions on CIC
training programmes, more than 100
careers talks for secondary schools
and NGOs, and a promotional
campaign targeting 135,000
households in public housing estates.
We held a manpower seminar in
March 2015 to brainstorm ideas for
tackling the shortage of skilled
workers, with over 70 stakeholders
participating, and are working closely
in this area with the Labour
Department, to whom we have
provided space in our Kowloon Bay
Training Centre to set up a
Construction Industry Recruitment
Centre.

Addressing industry concerns
Another current area of some
concern to the construction industry
last year was the implementation of
the new Competition Ordinance. To
assist our stakeholders and preclude
the risk of finding the industry in the
front line of «criticism, as has
happened in the past, we issued
guidelines on what might qualify as
anti-competitive
behaviour, and sought their co-
operation in putting compliance
programmes in place. Encouragingly,
we have received praise from the
Competition Commission for taking
the lead in this area.

collusive or

Executive Director’s Report
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However, the greatest concern to
many of our stakeholders at present
is the unstable political environment
in Hong Kong and in particular, the
delays being caused to the approval
of public works and financing by
filibustering in the legislature. These
actions will only serve to increase the
costs of these projects and put the
livelihoods of thousands of
construction workers at risk.

Forging international
partnerships

| mentioned earlier our co-operation
with Mainland and overseas
counterparts in knowledge exchange,
and believe this will be of growing
importance for the future. Hong
Kong is a relatively small city and
cannot live in isolation. Very few of
our construction companies have
sufficient scale to bid for overseas
contracts in their own right, but
there will certainly be a number of
Mainland firms doing so in the years
to come, and now is the time to be
building relationships with them so
that we can work together as a
team. We may not have their clout,
but we can contribute skill sets of
both Western and Eastern
management, in particular in the
legal and supervisory areas — as
already demonstrated by the number
of Hong Kong supervisory staff
working on projects in the Middle
East and their high reputation for
ensuring their completion on time
and without additional cost.
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We have already been exploring new
market opportunities for the past
two years, working closely with the
Government’s Development Bureau,
and have signed international co-
operation agreements with
Construction Scotland, CIC UK and
CIDB Malaysia. | hope to see some
of these bear fruit before long,
especially in the civil engineering
sector where Hong Kong has a well-
established reputation for high-
quality projects.

At the same time, we must not be
complacent, and recognise that we
have as much to gain from other
countries as they have from us. For
example, we have a lot to learn in
areas such as process manufacturing
and process re-engineering. Society is
changing rapidly and our customers’
expectations are increasing all the
time.

Facilitating sustainable growth
With eight years of experience
behind the CIC, it is time for an
evaluation of what steps the industry
now needs to take to facilitate
sustainable growth. For this reason,
we started working with the
Members of the Council in 2014 to
look into this question and agreed to
engage a consultant, McKinsey and
Company, to undertake a
comprehensive, 18-month study of
the industry and recommend
development strategies for the next
decade. The consultant’s interim
report was delivered in January this
year and has identified 60 priority
items to address, which will serve as
a focus for the Council’s efforts in
2016 and beyond.

volume

to the year

Executive Director’s Report
HITRERS

In closing, may | thank our Council
members for their strong support,
along with our most dedicated teams
at our headquarters building, training
and service centres who have
handled a sometimes enormous
of work in a very
professional manner. | look forward
ahead with great
optimism and confidence.
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EMBERSHIP
OF CIC

R = E

Sr CHAN Ka-kui
PR 2% 50 R = AD

Chairman, Construction Industry Council _ <\ =

BEXBEE IR b .

(Taken up the new position of Chairman of CIC from 1 February 2016) - o

(2016 F2 A1 AZFREFFHELE) -

Chairman, Committee on Administration and Finance )

TBRRIGEEEEER T /5 }/
"

Ir CHAN Chi-chiu

PR R T2 AD

(Member since 1 February 2016) '

(2016 F2 A1HAE A 155 25 5)

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan

AR k4
(Member since 1 February 2016) A

(2016 F2 A 1HE A B3 S K E)

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan
PRIEZR Ti2Am
Chairperson, Construction Industry Training Board

BERIGRERE LTE

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

SRR kA

Chairperson, Construction Workers Registration Board
BERXZTANAIMEZSEE £/Z

Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben
KoM HIR TR



Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan

R L&

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(2016 FE2A1HEMAR ZFEEHKE)

Mr. LAl Chi-wah
REZE K4

Sr LAI Yuk-fai, Stephen

#8712 ORI = Al

Chairperson, Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting
HBRIESDHZEZES /8

Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
MERE &

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher

R EXRE HK

Chairperson, Committee on Productivity and Research
HENRHFAEEZELZEES £F

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth
Mg TIZAD

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(2016F2 A1 MA #1335 25k 8)

Mr. NG Kwok-kwan

RER K&

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(2016 F2 H1HZEMA R #Z E L E)

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence

h¥zE K&

Mr. PAN Shujie

ERIAR KA

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(20162 F1HE A 8935 &5 5)
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Membership of CIC
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Ir Kevin POOLE
R TIZAD
Chairperson, Committee on Environment,

Innovation and Technology
RE BIMRRNEZEZEE /&

Dr. WONG Nai-keung, Philco
EMESE 1§+

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(20162 A1H A B35 &5 5)

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun
EE HEIREM

Convenor, Objections Board
BERHEEZEER GFA

Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza
=EEB XL

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(2016 F2 A1HEMA B % 5 8)

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred
EE L&

Ir YU Sai-yen

Rk TA2AD

(Member since 1 February 2016)
(2016 FE2 A1HEMA B 3% &5 &)

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
R & LiZAD

Ir HON Chi-keung

FE5R TAZAD

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
ERE FEHER(TE)

24. =

Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada

HBEE Xt

Representing Permanent Secretary for Transport
and Housing (Housing)

REXEHREER ZERER(BE)

Chairperson, Committee on Construction Safety
BEXZZEZEE LT/E

Mr. HUI Siu-wai

RFAE AL

Director of Buildings

EFE EFR
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About the Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed in 2007 under the
Construction Industry Council Ordinance (Cap. 587). The CIC consists of a
chairman and 24 members representing various sectors of the industry
including employers, professionals, academics, contractors, workers,
independent persons and Government officials.

The main functions of the CIC are to forge consensus on long-term strategic
issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations to Government, provide
training and registration for the construction workforce and serve as a
communication channel for Government to solicit advice on all construction-
related matters.

Please visit www.cic.hk for further details.
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CIC Functions EeREe
(up to 31 December 2015) (B, 22015912 A31H)

Under Section 5 of the
Construction Industry Council
Ordinance (Cap. 587), the CIC
has the following functions:

1.

to advise and make
recommendations to the
Government on strategic
matters, major policies and
legislative proposals, that may
affect or are connected with
the construction industry, and
on matters of concern to the
construction industry;

RE(REXZSHKM) (5587
i) BE5tk  BEAATIR

1. AR ERERRERER
HENREEEE  BAKE
K SLEBE - ARBLEE R
BINEE MBEFRHER
NIEH 2%

2. MBARBEEXNTENRY
#F

3. REBEXENFEBRRNIE
FoRENRTREENEER

2. to reflect to the Government BES
the construction industry’s N,
needs and aspirations; 4. ggiii;wﬁgﬁ%;é
aix =1 ~T A’ 7= WEE A
3. to elevate the quality and EXRNEXBHRFLE:
competitiveness of the B .
construction industry by > P 37 % B IR A A &Sk
promoting the ongoing "ﬁn—l— lJ BERBERAWE
development and improvement MATHRE
of the industry; 6. FEEE . HE . B . isp
4. to uphold professionalism and AHBIIRRIZAEE - HE
integrity within the SR 3 SR AR 3K B RO B ¢
;‘r’;‘;t;:;g°’;e|'f”rdezsjlrayﬂoay 7. SEREITE )AL T A A
, , TR 5 T I B R
formulating codes of conduct E&%é%éiiiﬁgim
and enforcing such codes; T AT IR R
5 to improve the performance of 8 EMRFH WEARS @
N /\"l N A3 [mlPaN 5 - WE\
persons connected with the %#;J . E?ﬁggﬁi . gf
construction industry through Ej;iiﬁ%ﬁlji’gggfn};zz—ﬁjﬁy;
establishing or administering Egg%/ﬂ\’\jﬁmﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ , ;ﬁ
registration schemes or rating FE%%E%W%%E&'
schemes; =
\ \n Y 5 E}; M; % = 8 /8
6. to advance the skills of % EREEMRASAMERER

personnel in the construction
industry through planning,
promotion, supervision,
provision or coordination of
training courses or
programmes;
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10.

1.

12.

to encourage research activities
and the use of innovative
techniques and to establish or
promote the establishment of
standards for the construction
industry;

to promote good practices in
the construction industry in
relation to dispute resolution,
environmental protection,
multi-layer subcontracting,
occupational safety and health,
procurement methods, project
management and supervision,
sustainable construction and
other areas conducive to
improving construction quality;

to enhance the cohesiveness of
the construction industry by
promoting harmonious labour
relations and the observance of
statutory requirements relating
to employment, and by
facilitating communication
among various sectors of the
industry;

to serve as a resource centre for
the sharing of knowledge and
experience within the
construction industry;

to assess improvements made
by the construction industry
through the compilation of
performance indicators;

to make recommendations with
respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance;

Council Profile
mEEDI

13. to conduct or finance
educational, publicity, research
or other programmes relating
to occupational safety and
health, environmental
protection or sustainable
development in the
construction industry; and

14. to perform any other functions
relevant to the construction
industry, including those
functions conferred or imposed
on it by or under this
Ordinance, the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance
(Cap 583) or any other
enactment.

Under Section 6 of the
Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the supplementary
functions of the CIC are:

1. to provide training courses for
the construction industry;

2. to establish and maintain
industrial training centres for
the construction industry;

3. to assist, including by the
provision of financial assistance,
in the placement of persons
who have completed training
courses provided for the
construction industry; and

4. to assess the standards of skills
achieved by any person in any
kind of work involving or in
connection with the
construction industry, to
conduct examinations and tests,
to issue or award certificates of
attendance or competence, and
to establish the standards to be
achieved in respect of any such
work.

21
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1.

12.

13.

14.

BREERPOINENERZEE
BESSESIE:JES &

BERFTRBER - P&
KEBNES

B8 27 U O R £
R

ETHEDBETRBRERLE R
o IRBRERZEXAHE
BROBE =EE - HREHE
fEt & &

WITHREXEAE T EM R
B BREAKRDN GBEXT
AGEM GBI (F5838) S AE )
HMA XOEB THETEE
M B RE - IR B ARG - (2
R T ARG (E583%F)
AR A A SOR BRI T &
THREHORAE -

BOEZEEBRSHRODE6MR - &
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Construction
Industry Council
BEXESRE

HE COUNCIIL.
AND ITS COMMITTEES

R MEENEELET

Committee on Administration and Finance

TRRUBEEZES

Committee on Construction Safety
BER2EEZEE

Committee on Environment,
Innovation and Technology
BE -flFRBEMEEZES

Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting

KBERIBDHEEZES

Committee on Productivity and Research

SENRHREEZES

Objections Board

RERHEEZSS

Construction Industry Training Board
BEXIIKESS

Construction Workers Registration Board
BEETAEZHRZEES

Ad Hoc Task Forces
mEEENA

Hong Kong Green Building Council

EREROEESRS

Zero Carbon Building

TR i




The Council and Its Committees

HEREBTHEZAS

on Indrcators of Construction Manpower Situation (Workers)
HERER(TAN)IEIE

Task Force on Short-term Labour Supply
¥ |

Informal Task Force on Site Safety Incidents

IHR2ERFEXNER A

Task Force on Site Safety Training
IR REEN

Task Force on Site Housekeeping
T N

Task Force on Working in Hot Weather

HBEBIEERD

Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, ions and Additions (RMAA) Sites
® RE- E&E&IIDEIMZI{‘ingld\

Task Force on Site Safety of Worklng in Lift Shaft
FEREEIFNTIHR2EE A

Task Group on Application of Innovatl\g Design to Enhance Construction Safety

ERAIMKFUARERER2THE

Task Grougon SafeLy of Lorry-mounted Cranes
"8 BIEZ2THEINE

Task Force on River Sand Substitutes Research

AVERRHRER DA

Task Force on Schematic Design for Application of RFID, GPS and Sensor Technology in Monitoring the Movement of Construction Waste
ERBEBMNE E% § SEANE  2REEENRAAREABENENRGTAEEE A

Working Grou, p on dmap for BIM I ion

RKERZREEEABREEIE A

Task Grou%o st bllshment of Indust?( lard for BIM Impl ion

HiE RBITEXEEIRIAE

Task G trat y for Management and Reduction of Construction and Demolition Waste in Hong Kong
EE MFOENNERIENE

Task Force on the Selection of Consultants and Contractors
mEMEAARABEERIAE

k Force on Competltron Law

Tas
BmELERNA

sk Foge on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts

Ta n
HIRARE=MER A

Task Fore
2Ee

e of Em& Bxer-Procured Insurance Policies in Construction Contracts
BAA Ny i

RB R

ce on
WBA
cial Group on On-demand Bonds
AREEE A

a
Ep
Force on lard Contra isions for D ic Subcontracts
b

EAMEﬁAﬁﬁﬁS§¢

Committee of Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS)

Spe
S

Task
=]

SEBEMHEEEZR

Task Force on the Adoption of Drspute Resolution Advisor to the Subcontract

BHNRARAFTRMH TR

Working Group on the Review of the Implementation of the Dispute Resolution Mechanism

BEBRFEMREREETFE A

Task Force on Enhancements to Subcontractor Registration Scheme

RASBEEMEEEE A
Task Force on Training
REERM

Task Force on Trade Testing
IENRAEE A

Task Force on Contractor Cooperatlve Training and Apprenticeship Scheme

AERE BN RBEFHER D

Task Force on Sub-contractor Cooperative Trainin ,On—the-ﬂob ining, E&M Training and

ly Scheme

SEEEEEN - EREI - REEIFZHEHHERD

Task Force on CIC Manpower Forecasting Model Updating and Enhancement Study
LESEE HEY Fo T P Y

Ad*guc Working Group on Development of Local Construction Professmnals and Supervisory Staff to Work Overseas

FHBEERABRBEASIBHITHEREIE

Construction Workers Qualifications Board
REXTIANARTIEZAR

Construction Workers Review Board
BEXTIAEREZES

Sub-committee on Senior Workers Assessment

BERIATIRIEZEE

Sub-committee on Reglstratlon Matters
HERBEBIEESR

Task Force on Data Analysis

BiE S T |

Task Force on Construction Workers Registration System
REXTIAZMAGER)D

Task Force on the Promotion of Remaining Phase of Prohrbmon of CWRO
RE(REXTATMERIDGTREZLGRIXER A

Steering Group on Impl. ion of CWR!
5 TR T AR R 1)

A d
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Task Group on Implementation of
Heat Stress Action Plan
ETERRTBHARNOIE)NE

Task Group on Preventing Fall Accidents
lhrougkh Building Design
BFREPILES HEET NI N

Task Group on Preventing Fall Accidents in
Existi% Buildings
REEFHUERSRBE TSI THENAE

T?‘skf Group on Site Safety of Working in Lift
Shaft
FEE#ETENT R 2 TENE

Task Group on the Se\ectlon of Consultants

£ ﬁ&EFﬁ R I{E/NE

Task Group on the Se\ectlon of Contractors

TIRAEE T

Task Group on NEC3 Collaboratlve Contracts
MIRARFE=MRIENA

ase Book

Task Group on NEC C
|5 TR/

MIiEARED

Task Group on Constructlon Safety Courses

ZEIRRETIENAE

Task Group on Herita e Mamtenance
i

YR ERE TED

Course Advisory Panel on Construction
Supervisor

BEFEEIREEAMA

Course Advisory Panel on Quantity
Measurement

IHEEREZBEMA

Course Advisory Panel on Computer-aided
Software for Construction Projects

RETREHHERMFRERBA

Course Advisory Panel on Bricklaying,
Plasterin &T\hng
JEOKHH i BE RIS BRI AR

Course Adwsory Panel on Joinery

MATENREEMA

Course Advisory Panel on Construction
Formwork
BERREREEME

Course Advisory Panel on Painting,
Decorating & Sign-writin

R AR AE R A

Course Advisory Panel on Plumbing &
Pipe- f\ttln% .
KRR AT RIZERA

Course Advisory Panel on Marble-laying

TREMHMREBEA

Course Advisory Panel on Metal Works

SEBIEMREERA

Course Advisory Panel on Construction Plant
Maintenance & Repairs

%W@WH&&@ﬁ@

Course Advisory Panel on Electrical
Installation

ERREMRERHA

Course Adwsory Panel on Construction
Scaffolding Work:
EEMR Jrnﬁﬁi?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ

Course Advisory Panel on Bar-bending & Fixing
WHERRREERNA

Course Advisory Panel on Plant Operation

IR 1 BRI R AR

Course Advisory Panel on Site Surveying and
Surveymg & Setting-
SET H) Eﬂgﬂ&ééﬁé%ﬁwgﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ

Course Advisory Panel on Civil Engineering

IARTREMRIEZERH

Course Advisory Panel on Concreting
RETRIREERAE

Task Group on Standardisation of Labour
Return of Construction Sites

BREXBRIXREELCITENE

Task Grou p n RMAA Manpower Research
BEXANARZERE EETRIEE
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RGANISATION
CHART

AR IS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ir Dr. TO Wing, Christopher

Director — Training and Development
Ir LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex
RE-BIRBRE
RIEHE TR

Assistant Director
—Human
Resources,
Facilities
Management and
Administration
Ms. IP Wai, Cheryl
BEBE- A D

&R
MEEER BRI
g%t

Human f .
Operations Strategic Resources and Finance Information

= R Administration B 7 TfCE"O]OQV
ADERR BB BB

Management and
Kowloon Bay Safety Training
Training Centre Centre
JUEE & B AR EER
R 2 I AR A

Board Services Human Resources

RESEXK ABER

Facilities
Kwai Chung Trade Testing Industry Management and
Training Centre Centre Collaboration Administration
22 78 3| AR A s TERMAPL EREE NEEER
B

Sheung Shui
Training Centre

Training Grounds E-Learning

. Bl BETHE




Organisation Chart

MR

1T R B
B ®ELTEG

Projects and
Contracts
Administration
BEHREHNER

Procurement

®REE

Research and
Development
MERERE

Accreditation

Qualification
Framework

BERERE

Council Services

REEH®

Corporate
Developments

HEZR

Corporate
Communications and
Marketing
HEEMARER

Public Relations and
Fundraising
DHERER

Trainees
Recruitment

Z2ERE

Construction
Industry Resource
Centre

RIERER DD

Career Support
and Alumni
Development
BMEHER
EEBERR

Internal Audit
A

Assistant
Director —
Registration
Services
Ms. LEE Oi-yen
Bl ¥ 4 B -
ZEME®
FER L+

Registration
Services

AEME®

Board Services

ZEEEXR

Assistant
Director —
Environmental
and
Sustainability
Mr. LI MAN-chiu,
Justin
Bh ¥ 48 B -
RRE
AFERR
ERE LLE

Zero Carbon
Building
ShXih

Board Services

ZEEEXK

Technical Services

BB
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17.

Ir Dr. TO Wing, Christopher F§ & {@+TR&

Executive Director #7748

Ir LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex ${&# I2H0
Director — Training and Development 153/ %% #2

Ms. IP Wai, Cheryl ¥ B Z=*
Assistant Director — Human Resources, Facilities Management
and Administration A JEF YR EFERIEE BIFEEE

Ms. LEE Oi-yen Z®E X+
Assistant Director — Registration Services itTiE# BIIE85:

Mr. LI Man-chiu, Justin ZR# %4
Assistant Director — Environmental and Sustainability, ZCB
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Trade Testing Workshop for Metal Scaffolders in CIC Aberdeen Trade Testing and Training Centre
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ORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

Corporate Governance Framework 1 ¥ &4 1E 22

_\ASK)N =

To drive for unity and excellence of the construction industry of Hong Kong

BAEBRER WAL

e Unity B4 * Excellence =it

MISSION )

To strengthen the sustainability of the construction industry in Hong Kong by
providing a communications platform, striving for continuous improvement, increasing
awareness of health and safety, as well as improving skills development.
MABFEREENTHEER  BEARE—(EBEATE  HRTEES BRI
BER2E#H  BEREER

e Council ¢ Boards and Committees
E b ZEEREEZER

Five PILLARS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ERERZIBEER

e Standards of Behaviour 174 % 8

e Organisation Structure and Business Processes #H i R E K £ K K 2

e Risk Management and Control & [ & &2 K& B i
e Reporting and Communications 3 & & & &

e Corporate Citizenship %A R

HHT &=
PR
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Corporate
Governance Report

o

XEAW®RE

Mirroring the best practices
within the public sector, the
CIC Corporate Governance
Framework was established by
making reference to:

o the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices
issued by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing
Limited;

o the Corporate
Governance for Public
Bodies - A Basic
Framework published by
the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public
Accountants; and

o the Good Governance
and Internal Control
in Public Organisations
issued by the
Independent Commission
Against Corruption
(ICAQ).

Key emphases of the CIC
Corporate Governance
Framework are as follows:

1. Executing the
CIC functions in
accordance with the
Construction Industry
Council Ordinance
(CICO) (Cap.587), the
Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance
(CWRO) (Cap.583) as
well as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap.201);

2. Exercising due care in
using funding;

30
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BREFXZENEEERIERN
TEEHR:

1. RBEEEXEZZEOD
(B587E) - (BEETA
MBI (85583%) A K

B 1k BB B fi 1 )(58201
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5. EKMEMY SRR
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3. Creating value for the
construction industry and
the community at large;

4. Formulating policies and
procedures that govern
the operations of the CIC;
and

5. Communicating with
stakeholders and business
partners in a timely and
informative manner.

As illustrated on Page 29, the
CIC has five pillars of Corporate
Governance and these form the
core values of the CIC:

1. The standards of
behaviour lay down
our expectation on the
official conduct of the
Council’'s members and
staff. The core values
behind the standards are
integrity, impartiality and
transparency.

2. The business of the
CIC is governed by its
organisation structure
and business processes.
The execution of business
processes is guided by the
pursuit of effectiveness,
efficiency and value for
money.
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Risk management and
control allow the CIC to
remain versatile when
facing various challenges
in the dynamic world.
Much emphasis is placed
on putting preventive
measures in place that are
part of the overall plan to
move the CIC forward.

The CIC is committed
to employing various
channels to communicate
with its stakeholders
regularly regarding its
initiatives that are under
way and the outcomes
of those completed
throughout the year. This
positions the CIC as both
a transparent organisation
and a platform for
communication.

Corporate citizenship
is a key element in
building a better, fairer,
and stronger society.
As the members, staff
and trainees of the CIC
engage in corporate
social responsibility
initiatives, the social
message behind these
campaigns and services
dovetails with the CIC's
vision and mission of
working towards a more 2.
livable and sustainable
future for Hong Kong.
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The Council strives to continue
enhancing its corporate
governance in order to
demonstrate to different
stakeholders that the CIC
businesses are run in a fair
and proper manner. This
further strengthens the trust
and confidence among the
stakeholders and the CIC.

Corporate Governance
The Chairperson and the 24
Council members of the CIC are
appointed by the Secretary for
Development. Members come
from various sectors of the
industry including employers,
professionals, contractors,
subcontractors, materials or
equipment suppliers, training
institutes, academic institutions,
trade unions, independent
persons and Government
officials.

The Council provides strategic
leadership and guidance as well
as sets the overall direction
for the CIC to pursue. It also
monitors the organisational and
managerial performance of the
CIC.

The Council has established
five committees to enhance the
performance of its functions.
Together with the five statutory
boards established under the
CICO and the CWRO, they
set the strategic direction as
well as oversee the operations
of the CIC. The committees
and statutory boards further
establish subcommittees and
task forces to focus on the
specialised task and/or industry
issue.

Corporate Governance Report
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Committee chairpersons are
elected among the members.
Four members, at minimum,
are required to present in
a committee (including the
committee chairperson), except
for the statutory boards which
are required to have the
members as specified under
the CICO and CWRO. When
necessary experts can be invited
to be co-opted members. The
number of co-opted members
nevertheless should not exceed
the number of members.

For membership, terms of
reference and reports from each
committee, please refer to the
Committee and Board Reports
on page 49.

Achievements in 2015
The Council has strategically
pursued and accomplished the
followings:

° Innovation is and will
continue to be the main
catalyst of efficient and
sustainable development
of the construction
industry of Hong
Kong. The inaugural
CIC Innovation Award
aimed to recognise
new technologies and
breakthroughs developed
all over the world. The
award ceremony was held
on 15 December 2015 in
the Government House.
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The guest-of-honour was
the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.
The CIC received in total
66 submissions in five
categories, with 25 from
industry practitioners,
12 from academia, 5
from young innovators
(industry practitioner), 8
from young innovators
(academia), and 16
from the international
category.

Bamboo is a traditional
construction material,
which impresses visitors
from all over the world
with its wide application
in Hong Kong. We
extend its possibility by
applying such to arts
through the construction
of the Bamboo Pavilion
in ZCB. The ZCB Bamboo
Pavilion was officially
opened on 15 October
2015. The 300 square
metre Bamboo Pavilion
is a curved bamboo
structure covered with
a white translucent
waterproof stretch fabric
and lit from within. The
combination of digital
design technology and
traditional craftsmanship
in the ZCB Bamboo
Pavilion demonstrates the
evolution of traditional
Cantonese craftsmanship,
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and contributes to
increasing awareness
among stakeholders
in the Hong Kong
construction industry of
bamboo’s potential for
innovative contemporary
architectural applications.
The Bamboo Pavilion
illustrates and expands
the technical application
of this unique natural
building material and
ensures continuity in the
craftsmanship of bamboo
— an important part of
Hong Kong's heritage.

To formulate the long
term vision and strategy
for the construction
industry of Hong Kong,
a consultancy study was
commissioned. An interim
Consultancy Report on
Development Strategy
for the Hong Kong
Construction Industry was
completed during the
year. A Council Members’
“Away Day” was held
on 17 December 2015
to deliberate on the
vision of the construction
industry and findings and
recommendations of the
report with an ultimate
aim to formulate action
plans to furtherance
the development of the
construction industry.
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ClC promoted
the Construction
Workers Registration
(Amendment) Ordinance,
effective on 1 April 2015
to attract qualified senior
construction workers to
register as skilled workers.
Over 2,200 participants
from 690 organisations
participated in 35 briefing
sessions. In addition,
tailor-made sessions were
also arranged for trade
associations, professional
bodies, workers unions,
contractors as well as
individual enterprises. It
also held 47 site talks
in construction sites in
collaboration with the
Hong Kong Construction
Industry Employees
General Union, attracting
attendance of over 3,000
workers.

To cater for the
sustainable development
of the construction
industry and to keep
pace with the latest
technology, the CIC
commenced the
development of a new
Construction Workers
Registration System in
2013. The new system
aims to provide an
enhanced platform for
contractors to manage
and report the daily

Corporate Governance Report
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attendance record
(DAR). The development
of Phase 1 of the
Construction Workers
Registration System
completed in 2015 was
launched in December.
The new system deployed
android devices with
NFC technology with
installation of the CIC
developed Attendance
App. DAR was managed
on an online platform.

To revamp the obsolete
legacy information
systems and to move
towards automation to
increase the effectiveness
and efficiency of the
works of the CIC, the
Council promulgated
an organisation-wide
enterprise application
architecture driving
revamp of legacy systems,
upgrading of systems
and cohesive data
management.
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o CIC produced a series
of TV advertisements to
promote senior workers
registration arrangement,
"“designated workers
for designated skills”
provisions and trade
tests. The advertisements
are being broadcast in
phases. The versions

promoting “Senior

Workers Registration

Arrangement” and trade

tests were aired on

TVB, ATV, TVB Network

Vision, Cable TV, Now

Broadband TV till end of

March 2016.

New Members

New orientation sessions have
been arranged for all new
Council members. The CIC's
senior management gives
orientation sessions to new
members to familiarise them
with the history, governance
framework, organisation and
key initiatives of the CIC. All
new members are required to
sign the Code of Conduct for
Members, which details the
stipulations about compliance
with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, policies around
acceptance of advantages,
conflicts of interest, and the use
of proprietary and confidential
information.

Corporate Governance Report
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Council, Board and
Committee Meetings

The key procedures in place
include:

(@) Bi-monthly meetings
are held by the Council
whereas boards and
committees meet at
least quarterly (except
for Objection Board,
Construction Workers
Qualification Board and
Construction Workers
Review Board, which hold
meetings as and when
necessary).

(b)  The meeting schedule is
set at the beginning of
each year to facilitate
members to reserve time
to attend.

(0 Meeting agenda and
notices are issued to
the Members at least
two weeks before the
meeting;

(d)  Members are provided
with papers containing
information regarding the
topics to be discussed as
far as possible in advance
and at least one week
before the meeting;
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The Executive Director
and senior management
attend the meetings
to represent views of
management and provide
further information and
explanations to the issues
where appropriate, but
they do not have voting
rights in the decision
making process;

Members are
required to sign the
attendance sheet.
Meeting attendance
and proceedings are
documented in minutes
by the CIC Secretariat,
which upkeeps the
accuracy of the minutes.
Minutes are reviewed
and approved in the

subsequent meeting;

The minutes of the
meetings (except
the Committee on

Administration and

Corpora U3Cknfrnance|{ep0rt
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Finance, the Objections
Board and the closed
door sessions of meetings
of the Council) are posted
to the CIC website for
reference for stakeholders
and the public;

Members are required
to declare any conflict
of interests, if any,
before commencement
of discussion of the
concerned agenda items;

and

Members have access to
expertise to discharge
their responsibilities upon
obtaining proper approval
where appropriate.
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During 2015, meeting attendance of the Members was as follows:
FE2015F ZEKELENGENT:

Meeting Attendance

Council Committees

E E5ZEY
Council Members csy EIT PNS PNR
EE RE -AH RKER X£EXD
z2 EEiltT IBZ2H RWRE

Ir LEE Shing-see (Chairman) P4 TRE(ERE) 6/6 717

Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew  BREIE s£4& 6/6 3/4

Ir CHAN Siu-hung PRARIE TI2EM 5/6 5/7

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan BRIEAR  Ti2AD 4/6 3/4 3/4

Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai RER KA 5/6 6/7 4a/4 0/4

Ir CHEW Tai-chong AXE I 2/6 0/7 4/4

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul HFER G4 6/6 717 3/4 4/4

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu BB K& 4/6 2/4 4/4 1/3

Ir Prof. Chu Pui-kwan, Reuben  “KJfid# 2438 T2 ED 4/6 2/4 0/3

Ms. Fung Yin-suen, Ada* BEE &I+ 5/6 4/4 4/4 4/4 3/3

Ir HON Chi-keung* Bko TiERmS 4/5 5/5

Mr. HUI Siu-wai OB K& 4/6 4/4 3/4

Mr. LAl Chi-wah REE K4 4/6 4/4

Sr LAI Yuk-fai, Stephen FEEIE ORI ZAD 4/6 3/4 2/4 2/3

Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert MER K4 6/6 4/4

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, REREE HE 5/6 5/7 3/4 3/3
Christopher

Mr. MAK Tak-ching EEFE %4 1/6

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence h¥E K& 6/6 2/4 3/4

Ms. PANG Melissa Kaye THE &+ 5/6 3/4

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick* & —# B+ Ti2AR* 5/7

Ir Kevin POOLE B2 TRRA 3/6 1/7 4/4 0/4

Ir WAI Chi-sing* EEK IRA 11 2/2

Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike HES &4 4/6 3/4

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun ELE HORIEM 5/6 3/4 2/3

Mr. WU shek-chun, Wilfred MEE &£ 4/6 3/4 1/3

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo* w58 IR 4/6 3/3

37



GTOg 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

Corporate Governance Report

wE

Members of the Construction Industry Training Board
BEXIREEENE

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick (Chairman)?

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan*

Ms. CHENG Sau-kuen*

Prof. CHIANG Yat-hung*

Sr CHONG Wing-hong, Benjamin*
Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert

Mr. LAI Sai-hong*

Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert”
Mr. LEUNG Yuk-keung*

Mr. NG Kwok-kwan

Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung
Mr. SZE Kyran

Mr. TSE Chun-yuen

TR R
RS
MR B
R E 58
REIE
N5

IR IR
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11/11
711
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Meeting
Attendance

Members of the Construction Workers Registration Board

EEETAIMZEERE

Mr. CHONG Kit-lit, Paul (Chairman) HEA EAE(ERE) 4/4
Mr. CHAN Cheung-hing, Thomas* PREESE oAt 11
Mr. CHAN Chi-hin REE  £E 4/4
Ir CHAN Chi-ming BRER  TiRE 4/4
Ir CHAN Loong, Geoffrey PR EE TH2AM 3/4
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu R KL 4/4
Mr. FAN Cheung-fung* BRYE A 4/4
Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan TR LA 3/4
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul gy Ht 4/4
Mr. HO Wai-wah mEE gt4£ 4/4
Dr. KUANG Jun-shang BEWM Bt 3/4
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen WEY TiEm 3/4
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence mEE L4 4/4
Ir PANG Yiu-hung, Eric TR TIER 3/4
Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex FHE kAE 4/4
Mr. WU Wai-hung* HEE A 2/3
Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice REX ®t 3/4
Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo wi58E  TIEAD 4/4
Mr. YU Wai-wai RcERE K& 3/4
Prof. YUEN Kwok-kit, Richard* REIG R 2/4
# Movements of the Members during the year included: # FARAKENEHBIE:
(i) Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick retired as CIC member, (i) T—MBIE T TRRAMMN2015F1A318H T

BREXHEKE BELR2EAR ;gm
REARKRBRIRDHERLZES

member of Committee on Construction Safety and

member of Committee on Procurement and

=

Subcontracting on 31 January 2015. 8o

(i) Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo joined as CIC member on 1 (i) RBPEIRADA2015F2A1BMAK A
February 2015. BE¥EeXs -

(i) Ir WAI Chi-sing retired as CIC member and member of (iii) ﬁiﬁXI%iEfﬁﬁA2015$4ﬂ7ElﬁﬂT£EL

XREREURTREGBEEZES

Committee on Administration and Finance on 7 April

2015 and was succeeded by Ir Hon Chi-keung. KB REEERTIRANEME -

(iv)  Mr. WU Wai-hung retired as CWRB member on 27 (iv)  BAEMSE A R2015F 108278 H T &
October 2015 and was succeeded by Mr. CHAN ¥TAAMEESKE - HREELE
Cheung-hing,Thomas. A

* Members joined on 1 January 2015 * M2015F1A1H I AKX B
A Members retired on 31 December 2015 A M2015F 12 A31HREMAK E
* Representing Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing * REBELAFEERFEIWER(EE)

(Housing)

___________________________________________________________________________________________|
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Meeting proceedings
Meeting notices are issued
to the members at least two
weeks before the meeting.
Members are provided with
the meeting details one week
before the meeting under
normal circumstances. Members
are required to declare any
conflict of interest before
discussion on the concerned
agenda items commences. The
declaration and the actions
taken, such as a member
refraining from participating in
the discussion of the concerned
agenda, will be documented in
the minutes. Meeting minutes,
attendance of members and
discussions of each agenda
item, are circulated to members
for comments with the finalised
approved version posted on
the CIC website (except the
closed door sessions of the
Council, the Committee on
Administration and Finance and
the Objections Board) for the
public’s perusal.

The management of the CIC
attends the Council, board and
committee meetings to provide
secretarial support. They may
present the information, explain
the CIC policies and procedures,
as well as answer questions
raised by members. The
management of the CIC, under

Corporate Governance Report
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the leadership of the Executive
Director, will follow up on
the execution of the strategic
direction set by the members
and report from time to time.

The governance of the CIC is
built on a system of checks
and balances around the five
pillars of the CIC Corporate
Governance Framework.

Standards of Behaviour
The Code of Conduct for Staff
covers the areas of outside
work, confidentiality, conflicts
of interests, acceptance of
gifts, and workplace conduct.
All new hires are to sign to
acknowledge the Code of
Conduct. In addition, the
management members are
to declare in writing their
compliance with the Code of
Conduct annually. The Code of
Conduct is renewed annually
with reference to the best
practices promulgated by the
ICAC.

To reinforce staff awareness
on the standards of behaviour
expected in the course of
business, the CIC invited
the authorities to conduct
training to refresh the staff's
knowledge. Compliance with
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the laws is the CIC's priority.
Similar to the previous year,
the CIC invited the ICAC,
the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data, and the Equal
Opportunities Commission
to conduct staff trainings so
that our staff would remain
conscientious and renew their
vigilance and integrity in
carrying out their duties.

Additionally, suppliers and
contractors should comply with
the probity clauses and declare
their adherence to the anti-
collusion clauses as mandated
by the CIC.

Organisation Structure
and Business Processes
The CIC employed 642 full-time
employees as at 31 December
2015, with 64% of employees
male and 36% female. (As
at 31 December 2014, there
were 633 full-time employees
of whom 63% were male
and 37% were female.) The
CIC is an equal opportunity
employer. Our employees come
from diverse backgrounds,
ranging from trade skills,
civil engineering, mechanical
engineering, surveying,
legal, mediation, arbitration,
accounting to environmental
sustainability.
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The CIC has a Staff
Development Scheme and
staff are sponsored to take
training courses that are
relevant to their work. Courses
organised by the CIC in 2015
covered different areas such
as personal development,
counselling, conflicts and
complaint handling, computer
applications, business writing,
legislations, etc.

The average number of training
hours per employee was 8.95
in 2015.

Risk Management and
Control

The CIC risk assessment
methodology takes into account
input from different levels of
management. Throughout the
process, the risk appetite and
concerns of the management
are captured. The final
result reflects the relatively
vulnerable areas of the CIC.
The management can then
formulate risk mitigation
measures and deploy resources
to guard the CIC against the
risks.

The risk-based audit approach
was adopted to prioritise
internal audit review projects.
During the vyear, the Internal
Audit reviewed the Zero Carbon
Building (ZCB) operations,
Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance compliance as well
as information technology
software management.
The review focused on the
compliance with regulations,
policies and procedures as
well as any improvement
opportunities on the design of
control.

41

SZEERITEIHEI - 28
ITERTHBRERRBEALERK
ZARBEERHE -
H—HE " fﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁ
JEETRRGR  WHEZEH
HERZEAENHERR
B Z 5 -
HBEBREBRE

H 22015F12831H © # 25
ATeRE2BEES - EH64%
BB MER36% BT (HE
2014F12A31H - 2BiEE A
# B633A°63% B B M K
37% B ) BEIERTEHK
gELX EEXREATRES
RMEBT B - £RIE - #
W g RkE- AR
W U ERENAFE
BRE -

BEFXEAERBEIHEE
2 APEIRTSNEERT
EEBMEIIRE - BIEXES
GR2015F B RHRIERET
ﬁﬁﬁ~@%ﬁA%@ &
E . FRaENREE  EKE
B BEsERD - &M%

f

o

MR2015F @ BREIESTHF
P B 8 A8 95/ NBF o

b EREE
BEFZENORARBIGTEE

BTREZEEEEENER -
EEEBRET LT REBA

E%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ&mﬁﬁo
BOERRIRT HEHEYEE
'%ﬂm?h°aﬁﬁT%
il T R B 4% AR 18 e FI A L &
TR &Rk e

FERBARRIENTER
NEBFEFTRF HE EHE LR
FreFR - AREFRHTE
ik RIELE CEAE # (L)
fig B1) 19 38 <7 15 0 A & B F LR
REMER - BRI ETR
RO BERFIE P& TS5
S LA AT ARl AT B B R R S

e o

—&=
BEFTH

BT

-3



§T0Z 140day Tenuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

The Internal Audit handled
complaints by reviewing
whether the concerned staff
had diligently followed the
CIC policies and procedures.
An independent panel, made
up of third party experts to
offer impartial views and
advice, was convened where
necessary. Internal Audit
made recommendations to the
management with the aim of
enhancing the robustness of the
internal control systems.

As a statutory organisation
under the governance of
the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, regular liaison
with the ICAC continued to
enhance the CIC's immunity
against potential corruption
risks. During the year, the ICAC
conducted a review assignment
on the administration of
Contractors Cooperative
Training Schemes, which was
completed in February 2016.
The CIC acts on the ICAC
recommendations accordingly.

External auditors independently
carried out the statutory audits.
No non-audit work had been
engaged during the year.

Reporting and
Communications
Reporting

As required by the C/CO, the
CIC shall submit the report on
the activities of the Council,
statement of accounts and
auditor’s report to the Secretary
for Development within 6
months after the end of a

Corporate Governance Report
TEEERR

financial year. In addition,
the CIC publishes statistical
information in relation to trade
tests, training and workers
registration on the CIC website
to keep the public abreast of
the work of the CIC.

External Communications
The CIC publishes its news
through various channels
including:

o Updates on CIC's latest
events and activities on
social media: Regular
postings in the Executive
Director Blog, Twitter, the
CIC Channel on Youtube,
and Instagram to share
media and news of the
ClIC.

o Bi-monthly C/C Snapshots
sent via email providing
updates on the ongoing
initiatives of the CIC.

o Quarterly CIC Newsletters
report the events and
activities organised by the
CIC and industry news in
the past three months.
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Exchanges with Local and Overseas Counterparts

During the year, the CIC visited or received the following
delegations:

Nanyang Technological University (6 January 2015)

Institution of Civil Engineers from the United Kingdom
(16 January 2015)

Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council
(23 January 2015)

Edinburgh Napier University from the United Kingdom
(29 January 2015)

Safety and Health at Work Promotion Association of
Thailand (5 February 2015)

Shenzhen Municipal Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau (17 March 2015)

Institution of Occupational Safety and Health from the
United Kingdom (22 April 2015)

Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council
(12 May 2015)

Students from School of Architecture and Civil Engineering
of Tsinghua University (Sino Group’s Interns)
(16 July 2015)

Research Team from Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone
(18 August 2015)

Construction Industry Development Board Malaysia
(3 to 4 November 2015)

Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council
(17 November 2015)

Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of
the People’s Republic of China (11 December 2015)

Through these meetings, the CIC shared the Hong Kong
practices and industry knowledge, provided updates on the
CIC’s initiatives, and exchanged specialised knowledge with
its counterparts.
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Corpora U3(knfrnance|{ep0rt
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The stakeholders’ support is the key element in achieving the CIC’s goals. The CIC proactively reached out to
our stakeholders and discussed many issues fruitfully. The meetings held in 2015 are as follows:

RHENXIFRE

2o =
mE R

REEGHNER SeIHEBROELRENRZEASTEIERGEEMKR - B

FE015F BT SEB T

January

—A

February
—A
March
=A
April
M A

May
A

August
A

October
+A

November

+—A

The Australia Chamber of Commerce — Hong Kong and Macau
EAERRPIRNE S

The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors

BEAMETIEmnSE
The Competition Commission

BRELZES

Construction Site Workers General Union

EEMBBTAS

The Hong Kong Registered Contractors Association

EEEMAEERS

Chartered Institution of Civil Engineering Surveyors

ERFTLIAIRAIEMES

Hong Kong General BuiIding Contractors Association

EAREEAERB S

The Chartered Institute of Building
REFFEESES

Construction Site Workers General Union

EEMERTAS

Association of Consultant Quantity Surveyors

EXTHRAEERLS

Students from Department of Architecture of the University of Hong Kong

BRARBREBREBLENRE
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Internal Communications
The CIC values our staff. With
our presence in 19 locations
all over Hong Kong, defined
communication channels allow
a free flow of information
across all CIC locations to keep
all staff better informed. Town
hall meetings were arranged
to communicate with all staff
members with regard to policy
or organisational changes. The
standing Staff Relations Team
also collects staff opinions
and reflects them to the
management.

In addition, the internal
newsletter C/C Insight
records the latest corporate
developments, staff movements,
and other relevant information
among staff. The CIC’'s
management supports open and
frank exchanges among staff.
The management, including the
Executive Director, adopts an
open-door policy so that staff
members may discuss important
issues face to face. This culture
of transparency is instrumental
to the successful implementation
of various measures and the
timely rectification of operational
shortcomings.

Corpora U3(knfrnance|{ep0rt
TEEERR

Corporate Citizenship

The CIC's members, staff and
trainees had a fruitful year
giving back to the community
through a variety of events and
activities.

Donations and Charitable
Sales

The CIC participated in the
following events held by
charitable organisations and
raised HK$44,649 in 2015.
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Event Calendar 2015
20155 B H i
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Organisations

W1

Names of Events

EEIEZEE]

January
—A
March
=A
May
1A
July

+ A

August
N A

September

LA

October
+A

November
+-A
December

+=A

Community Chest of Hong Kong
YNk
Community Chest of Hong Kong
BB R@mE

Oxfam Hong Kong

N i

Médecins Sans Frontieres (MSF)
Hong Kong Construction

Industry Employees General Union

EEREFRTE

Pneumoconiosis Compensation
Fund Board
MELRTERMEESEZES

Community Chest of Hong Kong
BEER@mE

Orbis Hong Kong
BERRLLL T — FERER

Heep Hong Society
R e

Kely Support Group
BERES

Orbis Hong Kong
BRBELLE — BENER

Hong Kong Red Cross
EBLTTE

Community Chest of Hong Kong
EHE NS
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Love Teeth Day 2014/2015
Nz B ZF H2014/2015

Skip Lunch Day 2015
REmITEMTIRB2015

Oxfam Rice Sale 2015
& &S 0K2015

MSF Day 2015

B LB A H2015

Build a Better Hong Kong and
Construction Charity Fund Cheque
Presentation Ceremony cum
Prevention of Pneumoconiosis
Carnival

[(REEBHARINBEEXRAER
PEXRBREAERNMERT
ERTBREREEFE

Charity Mooncake Sale 2015

EEADEE2015

World Sight Day 2015
1t 57 48 B H2015

Pass-it-On 2015
B0 ME E K 17802015

Love Teeth Day 2015/2016
Nz ® 7 H2015/2016



CIC Volunteers

The CIC participated in the
Walk for Nature organised
by the WWF-Hong Kong in
November 2015. Like in past
years, our staff members and
their families enjoyed a relaxing
day in the wetland reserve of
Mai Po. The event once again
illustrated the importance of
saving natural habitats.

Also, in November 2015, CIC
staff and family members joined
the Chinachem Walk conducted
by the Chinachem Group in Tai
Mei Tuk and Sai Kung.

One hundred thirty-six staff
members and trainees of
the CIC gave blood at the
Hong Kong Red Cross’ blood
donation drive held at the
Kowloon Bay Training Centre
and Sheung Shui Training
Centre.

Corporate Governance Report
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Committee on Administration and Finance

TBRAMBERELZES

Chairperson

Ir LEE Shing-see

Members

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai

Ir CHEW Tai-chong

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Ir Kevin POOLE

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Permanent Secretary for
Development (Works)

Membership List RERZE

EE

&ML TRRE
5=

PRAGIE T2HM
RER KE
BAXE IR
HEZ ELE
BEE ILRM
RER R
B BT IR
RER BEEIRER(IK)

Terms of Reference

1. To advise CIC on staff matters,
including recruitment, salary and
other conditions of service.

2. To advise CIC on general
administration matters, including
accommodation and facilities.

3. To co-ordinate and prepare annual
estimates of income and
expenditure and programme of
activities for approval of CIC.

4. To recommend appropriate
investments of surplus funds.

5. To advise CIC on other financial
matters.

6. To oversee audit matters.

7. To advise CIC on strategic matters

and formulate one to three year
strategic plans to steer resources
accordingly to accomplish such
plans.
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Committee Report

Based on the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2015, total
income of the Construction Industry
Council (CIC) was $1,148.57 million
(2014: $935.70 million) and increased
by $212.87 million, representing an
increase of 22.7% against last year.
Total expenditure for 2015 rose by
$39.75 million to $730.85 million
(2014: $691.10 million). The
operating result for 2015 recorded a
surplus of $417.72 million (2014:
$244.60 million).

Levy income surged to a record high
of $1,029.49 million in 2015 (2014:
$783.33 million) and contributed
89.6% (2014: 83.7%) of total
income. The 31.4% vyear-on-year
increase of levy income in 2015 was
driven by the surge in levy on
building and infrastructure
construction works from the private
sector, as well as that on
construction works from the public
sector (mainly Mass Transit Railway
construction works, and port and
airport development). Levy assessed
on the value of construction
operations in the private and public
sectors amounted to $512.88 million
(2014: $388.33 million) and $516.07
million (2014: $394.64 million).

Investment and interest income for
2015 amounted to $16.30 million
(2014: $14.82 million). The increase
in investment and interest income
was mainly due to the higher interest
income on time deposits and held-
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to-maturity debt securities on

account of more available funds.

Course fee and related income
declined to $21.75 million in 2015
(2014: $22.73 million) mainly due to
the drop in course fees of part-time
courses.

2015
slightly dropped to $7.90 million
(2014: $8.45 million) mainly due to
the decline

Trade testing income for

in the number of

revalidation tests, which recently
peaked in 2014 and was anticipated

to follow a 5-year renewal cycle.

Registration fee income for 2015
marginally declined to $9.32 million
(2014: $9.94 million) in view of an
incentive fee waiver scheme offered
to workers who opted for the
registration cards with a validity of 3
years.

Total other income of $63.81 million
in 2015 (2014: $96.43 million) mainly
came from the reimbursement
income of trainees’ allowances from
the Government under the Investing
in Construction Manpower Scheme
(ICMS). As a result of the depletion

of funds for the reimbursement of

trainees’ allowances for certain
selected trades from the
Government.

Total expenditure in 2015 was

$730.85 million and increased by
$39.75 million from $691.10 million
in 2014, representing an increase of
5.8%. Major items included:

Committee and Board Reports

Staff costs amounted to
$306.79 million in 2015 (2014:
$294.28 million). The increase
of 4.3% in 2015 was mainly
due to the annual salary
adjustments; the average
number of headcount for 2015
remained stable against last

year.

Training expenses amounted to
$175.32 million in 2015 (2014:
$184.58 million) representing a
5.0%. The
decrease was mainly due to the

decrease of

decrease in training expenses
for collaborative training
the
Contractor Cooperative Training

schemes including
Scheme and Subcontractor
Cooperative Training Scheme;
the decrease was partly offset

by the increase in trainee
subsidies to the Vocational
Training Council on the

Diploma in Vocational

Education (DVE) Programme.

Workshop expenses marginally
decreased to $25.57 million in
2015 (2014: $25.76 million)
mainly due to the decrease in
consumable expenses, which
was in line with the slight
reduction in trade testing in
2015, as compared with the
previous year.

Repairs and maintenance
expenses increased to $14.02
million (2014: $12.48 million)
mainly due to the increase in

maintenance expenses for
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computer equipment and

software.

o Advertising and publicity
expenses increased by 18.6%
in 2015 mainly due to the
expenses for encouraging

Senior Workers Registration

Arrangement and publicity

expenses under Construction

Workers Registration

(Amendment) Ordinance.

° Depreciation amounted to
$46.95 million in 2015 (2014:
$39.56 million). The increase of
18.7% in 2015 was in line with
the
expenditure for the works

increased capital
completed in 2015, including
the enhancement at CIC Tai Po
Training Ground and ZCB.
o General and administrative
expenses amounted to $117.94
million in 2015 (2014: $99.85
million). The 18.1% increase in
2015 was mainly due to $13.28
million more funding support
to Zero Carbon Building; and
$7.33 million
research and studies.

increase in

o Capital commitments of $53.93
million in 2015 (2014: $20.36
million) comprised of

contracted capital expenditure

mainly for the modernisation
works at CIC Aberdeen Trade

Testing and Training Centre;

fitting-out works at the model

trade testing centre and BIM

Innovation and Development

a
S EE eI

Centre; design fee of the
mobile device for registration
services; enhancement works at

CIC Tai Po Training Ground.

As of 31 December 2015, the
held a total of $1,811.40
million as accumulated funds and

Council

reserves, as compared to $1,391.95
million in 2014.

the CIC
Ordinance, the Council submitted its

In accordance with

annual report for the year ended 31
December 2014 to the Secretary for
Development in June 2015, together
with the audited financial statements
for the
auditor’s report thereof. These were

same period and the

subsequently tabled at the Legislative
Council.
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CIC Revenue for the Years 2013 to 2015 #&3&E £ H 22013 2015F Uk A

Amount (HK$'m) £%8 (BH%SEET)

y

Levy income FIRA

1,200 [ Course fee and trade testing income
e R TEAIHIRA
1,000
B Other income E AU A *

800
600
400
200

0

2013 2014 2015 Year FE
* Other income includes registration fee income, investment and interest income, reimbursement of trainees’ allowances and

other miscellaneous income

HMRABREEIMELA - RERMBEA - HEFZEZHREMHEREKA

CIC Expenditure for the Years 2013 to 2015 Z & £ E 22013 Z2015FE WX H

Amount (HK$'m) €88 (BESEET B Staff costs B E B
300 B Training expenses IR A
700 B Workshop expenses T35 i}
600
I General and administrative expenses
500 — MR RATEE B
400 . )
[ Repairs and maintenance expenses
300 HIEREER
200 [ Advertising and publicity expenses
100 BEEEER
0 [ Other expenditure Hfth37 ii*
2013 2014 2015 Year 4 &
* Other expenditure includes depreciation and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

EXHEFRTERDEDE BERRBOER
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CIC Revenue, Expenditure & Surplus for the Years 2013 to 2015

BEEZT2013Z2015FE A XH R E&

Amount (HK$'m) £%8 (BESHET)

1,200

1,000
800
600 /f ‘
400 ./.
200 ‘

—- Revenue g A

—@— Expenditure ]

—@— Surplus Zfi**

2013 2014 2015

Year FE

x Surplus for the year 2015 included impairment on available-for-sale investments of HK$5.08 million

20155 M & #4 B 1508 & T Al (&S IR B W RUE

CIC’'s Financial Highlights and Financial Position (Year ended 31 December 2015)
EEXEZSUBRBEERMBMRR (BE2015F12A31BLLEFE)

2015 2014 2013
HK$m HK$m HK$m
BHSEERT BEIAET BEBIEET
Income A 1,148.6 935.7 784.4
Expenditure X (730.9) (691.1) (549.3)
Surplus for the year FER 417.7 244.6 235.1
Other comprehensive income for the year & Efb4R & U A
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of AEHEREN QA FEE
available-for-sale investments B%FCR),/ 18 (3.4) (3.6) 0.9
Impairment on available-for-sale EMOBEEREN
investments transferred to profit or loss A & & & K F B 5.1 2.4 —
1.7 (1.2) 0.9
Total comprehensive income for the year FE#R4A U A B 5E 419.4 243.4 236.0
NET ASSETS FEE 1,811.4 1,392.0 1,148.6




Facilities Enhancement —
Review and Implementation
The CIC was amalgamated with the
Construction Industry Training
Authority on 1 Jan 2008. Different
that
subsisted at the various owned and

procedures and practices
operated premises needed to be
standardised in order to enhance
operational efficiency and to meet
training demands. Given the fact that
the four existing training centres are
over 20 years old and without any
significant building improvements,
refurbishment is required to meet
current standards and to meet the
increasing demand for training and
trade tests. The CIC deemed it an
opportune time to commission a
comprehensive review of its premises
for sustainable development to cater
for industrial needs and to prepare

for future challenges.

CIC also noted that the four training
centres were in ageing buildings and
a structured and regular repair and
enhancement plan had not been in
The building
conditions were not good and the

place in the past.
majority of facilities were outdated.
As such, it was recommended to
engage a consultant for an overall

review of the buildings and facilities.

Savills  Project Consultancy Limited
(“Savills”) was engaged in December
2013 to conduct a comprehensive

review and analyse the space

Committee and Board Reports
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utilisation, a building survey, which
covers the Mandatory Building and
Window Inspection Scheme (MBIS &
MWIS) under the Building Ordinance,
a facility review in soft and hard
services and an energy audit.

The final report on the building and
facilities conditions of the CIC
premises, with recommendations for
repair and maintenance and
enhancement works, was approved
by the CIC in March 2015 with a
short-term, medium-term and long-

term implementation plan.

Some critical and major items in the
repair and enhancement, including
replacement of facade and windows
work, modernisation of passenger
lift, and re-roofing works in CIC
Aberdeen Trade Testing and Training
Centre were implemented in 2015.

RARE — RIARET
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EBYEREmEREIRER ZFEFE
M—ETHEAREENYEME
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TR &EBHEROATARE
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EHRBEEZERSE T YENR
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KRB AF &R -
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CIC Aberdeen Trade Testing and Training Centre
BEXBREEBFIEAARIEP L

Before Ai After #

Replacement of Facade and windows work

EBMIBREFIRE
Before Al In progress & &+

Modernisation of passenger lift

HEARHBALLEIRE

Before Ai After %




IT in 2015 — Improving
Efficiency, Accuracy, and
Speed

CIC
Workers Registration System in the

launched the Construction

fourth quarter of 2015 to provide the
industry with an automated and
convenient platform to collect and
manage the daily attendance records
(DAR) of workers. A mobile app was
launched in the third quarter for
workers to apply for trade tests on
the fly using their smart-phones.
Online payment was also introduced
for workers to pay for their trade test
applications at any 7-Eleven
convenience stores in their proximity.
Online payment will be extended to
other services offered by CIC to give
maximum convenience to workers
and stakeholders.

The public enquiry management
process was strengthened with the
launch of the Electronic Document
Management System, which keeps
track of documents in a timely
manner according to the CIC service
pledge. The CIC website was also
revamped to enhance the CIC image,
and a new content management
system was incorporated to give staff

content updates more quickly.

Committee and Board Reports
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To ensure that the CIC |IT

infrastructure will continue to evolve
to gain maximum leverage on the
CIC has
upgraded the server by adopting the
Our

also been

latest technologies,

virtualisation model. in-house

email service has
upgraded. An enterprise application
architecture was also formulated to
that IT

applications

ensure systems and
be built and

upgraded to meet the changing

will

needs of the CIC using the latest
technological developments in the
most cost-effective manner.

Research Results — The Road
Ahead

New challenges have emerged in the
Hong Kong construction industry 15
years after the issuance of the
“Construct for Excellence” in January
2001. There have been strong calls,
among industry stakeholders and in
the community, for a critical
examination of the current standards
and practices of the construction
industry, with a view to identifying
ways to improve the industry’s
performance in the future. McKinsey
("McKinsey")

commissioned by the CIC

& Company was
in July
2014 to derive strategies and tactics
to address the industry’s challenges.
Subsequent to extensive consultations
with relevant industry stakeholders
over 15 months, McKinsey proposed
an interim report with a series of
pragmatic strategies and measures in

the areas of manpower, productivity,

57
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safety, sustainability, collaborative

culture, as well as industry
development. In the Interim Report,
an implementation roadmap was put
forward with 84 recommendations,
comprising 60 new initiatives —
planned over short-, medium- to
long-term timeframes up to 2025, 11
“Existing or planned actions that
should be continued”, and 13 “Areas
when

for future exploration

conditions mature”. It serves as a
strategic roadmap to strive for

excellence and continuous

improvement for our industry’s

sustainable growth.

This interim Report has been issued
to Council Members and specified
bodies listed in the C/C Ordinance
(CAP 587) in early February 2016.
With a view to examining the areas
for exploration and addressing other
issues, the CIC is commissioning a
Consultant to conduct further
analyses, formulate strategies, and
the Final
additional issues should be addressed

issue Report. Four
under this Consultancy Study, which
are (i) Quality Assurance; (ii) Cost
Control; (iii) Programme Control; and
(iv) Climate Change. (i.e. follow-up
actions in reducing carbon emissions
of the construction industry in
response to the 2015 Paris Climate
Conference (COP 21)).

Committee and Board Reports
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Committee on Construction Safety
BERREEZES
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Mr. Steve HOWARTH wmTR Corporation Limited

Mr. KWONG Chiu-ling, Victor chairperson of Informal Task Force on Site
Safety Incidents

Mr. LAM Tat-ming, Terence Development Bureau

Ir LAU Chi-kin chairperson of Task Force on Review of Working Procedures for
Safety

Mr. NG Wing-fat, Ronnie 7he Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

Prof. WONG Kwan-wah, Francis cChairperson of Task Force on Site
Housekeeping

Mr. WONG Kwok-keung 7he Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors

Mr. WONG Wai-man Construction Site Workers General Union

Mr. WU Wai-hung Cchairperson of Task Force on Work Safety of Repair,
Maintenance, Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Sites

Dr. YEUNG Koon-chuen, Winson Occupational Safety and Health Council

X
WER %4

R A

HEma

BEEA TR2E

AEE £4

REE £k

mHE KA

EHE HBEIREG

EF¥E EE

ERREER EREE(EE)
BHES

BRER k4% soesmee ZTAT

ZEX RE spuseRA G
BRBE KL THe 2 E S LA EE AR

MER k&% 225
TR TR con I EE ) EEE

heEs % ssrptye
BERE U Tun g5 HIE

EER Ak sapnc IS

BEER &4k zansnTtas

MBI K%k e RE XZENEZTHZTE
ERHE MEE

BEE Bt perepes

Terms of Reference

1. To review and monitor safety performance of the construction
industry.

2. To review and enhance the mechanism of safety management.

3. To identify and recommend measures for improving safety performance
to CIC.

4. To promote adoption of the improvement measures by the industry.

5. To nurture a safety culture for the industry.

BEwsE
. BRETESREEENLERNI -

2. BAURERZEEHES -

3. HHARAREXRBNERE TREERE
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5. BYEARLEXEL-

B

59

HHT &=
BWETH

-3



GTOg 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

Committee and Board Reports

= \:' \:l:t
HELZEENTEIRE

Safety of =t
Lomy-mounted Cranes § " N co scTON
mERmE
Safety Alert No. 002/15

Page 103

Committee Report

The Committee on Construction
Safety (Com-CSY) under the CIC
issued three Safety Alerts in the year
2015. (1) Safety Alert No. 001/15 —
Safe Use of Vertical Transportation at
Construction Sites was published to
encourage stakeholders to provide a
safe and effective vertical
transportation to workers within
construction sites. (2) Safety Alert
No. 002/15 - Safety of Lorry-
mounted Cranes — Considerations
when Purchasing and Assembling
Lorry-mounted Cranes (including
brand-new and second hand) was
published to encourage lorry-
mounted crane owners and relevant
persons to consider thoroughly and
comply with the requirements
recommended during different
procedures. (3) Safety Alert No.
003/15 -

Construction Sites was published to

Traffic Safety on

encourage stakeholders to develop a

comprehensive construction site

traffic management plan to promote
safety.

Additionally, the Com-CSY released
(4) Guidelines on the Implementation
of “P” and “N” Caring Programme
which set out good practices
recommended by the CIC to
encourage more main contractors to

implement the Caring Programme.

A new Task Group on Safety of
Lorry-mounted Cranes was
established in July 2015 to work
with
stakeholders to discuss and agree on

together relevant industry
measures to enhance safe operation
of lorry-mounted cranes. Its duties
include: (a) to identify gaps in safe
areas for
(b) to find

solutions and formulate enhancement

operation and

improvement; and
measures to enhance safe operation
in the short, medium and long term.

Safety Alert No. 003/15
e 30f

Traffic Safety on
Construction Sites

GUIDELINES ox

THE IMPLEMENTATION OF “P” AND “N”
CARING PROGRAMME
31,
e
‘www.hkcic.org March 2015
—— curtin

=2 = & H
EEZEERE

BEEZE(EYETHRERS
EEZE2(EEZE8g)N2015F%
BT =HLERR - (N(XFET
F001 158 — LR EHEZT
FEER) NSBEHERREET
WAMTAREZEZERBEEINER
B o 2(X2IETE002 7158 —
EHEHEBEENLTE — RERERL
EEEEE(EIETER=FR)
HEEFEE) NEEEEN LI
BmEARHEBALHHEERE KRBT
RAEERFREZENER - ) (¥
PHERNF003159 — THRBZL
2) UEBHNEF TSN T H
RBEENENEAZSME -

o EEREENEMT4) (ZE
XBBTA LIEL 21 #7551) B
FIHEEERBNRIFIERERAR
HBESZTEAEZEHERBEBE -

PHNEERRER TIELETE/N
HER2015F7TAMKA - WELABR R
BOEBBEFAE  SwmkipELER
MARAESA BEHNIRIERS -

60



Committee and Board Reports

= \:' \:l:t
HELZEENTEIRE

Work Safety on Vessels and

RERRE Construction Over Water

Two Posters were also published: “Work Safety on Vessels and Construction Over Water” and

“Tips of Using Safety Helmets”.

FRGHEINE B (M LERKEBETRIIELRZIR(MBLZIE L) -

For the fourth consecutive year, the
CIC co-organised the Construction
Safety Week with the Development
Bureau in 2015, under the theme
“Workers’ Health and Safety
Leadership” to promote the message
of “Zero Accident” to the industry
and the general public. The week
comprised a Kick-off Ceremony cum
Qigong Display Competition,
Conference, the Innovative Safety
Initiative Award 2015, Site Visits and
the 21st Considerate Contractors Site
Award Scheme Award Presentation
Ceremony. Overwhelming support
was received from 42 organisations
and about 1,000 participants
attended the Conference, covering a
wide spectrum of the industry.

The Qigong Display Competition held
on 27 May 2015 kicked off the
Construction Safety Week 2015.
Officiated by Ir LEE Shing-see,
Chairman of the CIC and Mr. Paul
CHAN, Secretary for Development,
eight finalist teams comprising of
about 200 construction workers
demonstrated their achievement in
Qigong at Golden Bauhinia Square.
Qigong masters from the General

Administration of Sport of China
were invited as judges in the finals.

The Construction Safety Mobile App
was launched in the opening
ceremony of Construction Safety
Week 2015. It aimed to provide a
one-stop platform by consolidating
key safety messages and promoting
safety campaigns to frontline
workers, industry practitioners and
stakeholders in real-time. As of 31
December 2015, more than 9,000
people had downloaded the App.

To help construction workers to
reduce heat stress under hot and
humid weather conditions, the CIC
and the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (PolyU) entered into an
agreement, with PolyU licensing the
technology of an anti-heat stress
construction uniform to the CIC on 1
April 2015. Under the agreement,
the CIC would sublicense this
technology to other contractors for
wider adoption to further benefit the
industry. In addition, the new set of
uniforms were also used as CIC
trainee uniforms from September
2015 onwards.
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The CIC received a delegation from the Construction Industry Development Board Malaysia

EEEFEROTERTRERBALXE

To increase awareness in construction
safety and prepare undergraduates
who wish to join the construction
industry in the near future, the CIC
co-organised the “Experiential
Learning on Site Safety 2015" with
the Hong Kong Construction
Association (HKCA). The opening
ceremony was held on 27 August
2015 at Noah's Ark of Ma Wan.
Over 300 undergraduates attended
the training courses by the end of
2015.

In order to enhance safety awareness
in the construction industry and set
up a role model housekeeping centre
for the construction industry, Tai Po
Training Ground Enhancement Project
was launched by the CIC. The project
was completed on 23 December
2015 and the opening ceremony was
held on the same day.

Throughout 2015, the CIC received
several exchange visits from overseas,
including a delegation from the
Safety and Health at Work
Promotion Association (SHAWPAT) of
Thailand and the Hong Kong
Occupational Safety & Health
Association in February 2015, the

Institution of Occupational Safety and
Health of the United Kingdom in
April 2015, and the Construction
Industry Development Board (CIDB)
Malaysia in November 2015. Fruitful
ideas on nurturing a safety culture
for the construction industry were
shared.

The CIC continued to collaborate
with different industry stakeholders
to enhance construction safety in
2015. The following activities were
co-organised by the CIC:

(1) "Good Housekeeping
Promotional Campaign” with
Occupational Safety and Health
Council (OSHC);

(2) "Construction Safety
Promotional Campaign 2015”
with OSHC, Labour Department
and other organisations; and

(3) Briefing on “Managing

Maintenance Works for Lifts
and Escalators” and briefing
sessions for “Responsible
Persons for Lifts and
Escalators” with the Electrical
and Mechanical Services
Department.
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Committee on Environment, Innovation and Technology
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Terms of Reference

1. To promote environmental protection and sustainable development in
the construction industry.

2. To promote good practices in relation to sustainable construction.

3. To enhance innovation in construction industry to increase productivity
and competitiveness.

4. To encourage the use of innovative techniques for the construction
industry.

5. To advise on the strategy for development of construction standards.
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It has been another fruitful year for
the Committee on Environment,
Innovation and Technology (Com-EIT)
in 2015 with a number of tasks
achieved.
Firstly, efforts to promote and
support the implementation of
Building Information Modelling (BIM)
have made significant progress in
2015. The

2014" Presentation Ceremony held in

“BIM Excellence Awards

March 2015 provided an opportunity
to recognise construction
practitioners who have spearheaded
efforts in the harnessing of BIM
technology and processes to further
design, construction and project
excellence. Three categories of
awards were presented,
“BIMer of Year”, “Young BIMer of
the Year” and the
Innovator by BIM".
presented at the Ceremony held at
Sky100, attended by around 300

government officials,

recognising

“Construction
They were

senior
management, and BIM practitioners
to appreciate and recognise the 80
winners from 20 groups.

BIM Excellence Awards 2014 Presentation Ceremony

2014 5 i & 5 (5 5 R HF 217 4 42 78
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The Chairperson of the Working
Roadmap for BIM
Ada FUNG,
lvan KO, Senior

Group on
implementation, Ms.
together with Mr.
Manager - Training and
Development, represented the CIC at
Workshop on BIM
the

Commission on 24 February 2015 in

the inaugural
organised by European
Belgium, and delivered a
presentation in relation to the
development of BIM in Hong Kong.
A six-day Technical Seminar with
three themes — Building Projects, Civil
Projects and Professional Services —
was held in June and July 2015 to
introduce the BIM Standards (Phase
One). The BIM Standards (Phase One)
was formally published in September
2015, with four chapters covering: (i)
Project Execution Planning; (ii)
Modelling Methodology; (iii) Level of
Development; and (iv) Component

Presentation Style and Data

Organisation.

EEZEEHRE
0152 RE B ERENERZ
Eg(EEZE8)BREGEEEK
RN—F EXXNTZEEEIEA -

B HEHEEBRIEHBITRERESR
BE S R2015FNEERER °
F2015F 3 L1TH2014 8 MR E
ERBEAEZME  FeR
GREXNESNBRER &
ERBEEFEAMADERREERFE
@ﬁﬂ&&mﬁ%kﬂ?i%ﬁ
RR—HEE =AM EE -

%MﬂﬁEMMmhMﬁ;a$MMm
K IBIMBIFT &SR | - MR K
F1I00BBESART NE=8B%
NEELE BEBRNEE: afk
EEABREEEFGRERKEES

— R RERA T EER N
BEEREOBY A -
B 16 12 55 12 RS B BA R B TR ME

TEBEERTHRES T RE
BRafEEaRE2EERKESE
BAALFE  2EHBBEZEERN
2015F2 A24R B FNBENEEEFE
REEIIES ARBEANERERFES
RRERBRAERESE -

Inaugural Workshop on BIM organised by the European Comission

BEZESEREEELEERBETIFY

64



| AN - Va
CIC Building Information Modelling Standards
(Phase One)

CIC Building Information Modelling
Standards (Phase One)
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Work is continuing on preparation of
a new set of standards to facilitate
the Submissions of General Building
Plans (GBP) to statutory authorities
and concerned departments.

A report on the Client Summit held
2014 to
consider the Development of BIM

on 11-12 September

Implementation Strategies from a
that
engaged clients from Government
and Public
Sector, was published as reference
2015. The
report aimed to assist project clients
BIM
and

Project Client's viewpoint,

Sector, Private Sector

materials in November
to work out their
strategies
provided decision makers of project

own
implementation

clients with valuable insights and
international experiences in adopting
BIM.

To provide more BIM training to the
the BIM
Development Centre is being
established on the third floor of the

industry, Innovation and

Committee and Board Reports
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CIC Kowloon Bay Training Centre as
of mid-2015. The new centre will be
equipped with more than 50
workstations for training courses with
different platforms of BIM software,
Photogrammetry, 3D Scanning and
3D Printing.
inexperienced firms in using BIM,

It will also support
including SMEs by providing facilities
for them to conduct their specific
projects. The new centre is targeted
to be launched in the second quarter
of 2076.

The CIC
another major event in 2015, which

Innovation Award was

was aimed at recognising and
showcasing innovation and initiatives
that have the potential to transform
the construction industry. The award
separately recognised local academics
and practitioners in the categories of
materials, technology and
management with an additional

award for international participants.

The Award Presentation Ceremony
held
Government House on 15 December
2015. The Honourable LEUNG Chun-
ying, Chief Executive of the HKSAR,
addressed the guests in his keynote

was successfully at the

speech that innovation showcases
may lead to industry advances and
even breakthroughs and they can or
may already have benefitted the
land use,

construction industry in

design, physical construction and
mades of operation. A total of eight
out of 66 submissions were selected
by the judging panels to receive the
inaugural CIC Innovation Awards. A

rigorous round of deliberation among

M2015F6 AZE7AHRART T -l A
HARMEMATE  BUANAE
EEEEREEE B -fag
E-ExE 55 A/AREEIEE -+
NEBREXERYE BREXZER

S BEBIZEE(F—H)R201549
AEREER  »ANEASE  WE(G)

BB E MRS E ()& 5% (i) 48
fiRE: URWAETRRZAEE
KR -

RFE X BB AIGBP) TR AT
BRELEBSPIN - E2HRER
EFIEES -

P2014F9/MENRB BT IER ¥
Take  eRERTHWMSE - ®
HEEX(BAH#HE LABBRA
ERBIMNACEZEERELEEIR
BHOXE BENEMABIEE
XFETRFHEBEELEENH
IREE  WHIHBEXMNREED
ZRERAREEEERTENEER
REBRERER -

RAERRERESTENRERES
BHEIEY - FER2015FPREAE
BEXRZENREIRPL=ZER

VEEFEEBAIFERERFPL
FEMPLEREBBSOETIES

HFIREZA - AJAER TR
EREERBUMFE ARER
FRERM Z#IRFERMN R
ZHATENRU - POTRE & ER
ZREBHDBMFR/NEERRES
SBRE TARRERHMEERE
NETHSFIRIER - FhOF
220165 5 —FHIGEE -

BEER TR RE20IFN S —
HEZEHED WREEEXRBLE
THENE(CREENAERERE -
RESANRGEDH  BERERE
TABENAHEERNES B
SN R R T IE N2 EE o

65

—&=
BEERHE

BT

-3



GT0Z 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

.

the judging panel recognised the
excellence and diversity of the
entrants. The winning projects for the
International Grand Prize and Local
Grand Prize were Bendable Concrete
and Anti-heat Stress Clothing for
Construction Workers
Humid Weather,
winning projects for the first prize of
Academia and Industry Practitioners
sectors were Z-Panel System -
Lightweight Prefabrication and
Mechanised Construction,
respectively.

in Hot and
respectively. The

The CIC Carbon Labelling Scheme on
Construction Products, which aims to
promote the adoption of low-carbon
construction materials in the industry,
has made further progress during the
year. By the end of 2015, the scheme
has received six further applications
from materials manufacturers,

suppliers, and contractors in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan
and United Arab Emirates. A total of
16 products have been certified,
including products of structural steel,

rebar, and ready-mixed concrete.

Committee and Board Reports
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CIC Innovation Award 2015 Presentation Ceremony
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In order to acknowledge the first
batch of successful applicants, the
CIC organised a Technical Seminar on
“The Rise of Low-carbon
Construction Materials cum Carbon
Labelling Scheme Acknowledgement
Reception” on 26 November 2015 at
ZCB. Representatives were invited to
share their experiences in low-carbon
manufacturing practices and
environmental ideas with the
industry. The scheme has also been
promoted through events like ECO
Expo Asia 2015 mini talks in
AsiaWorld-Expo Hong Kong and HKIE
seminar, amongst others.
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Apart from these, the Research on
River Sand Substitutes for Concrete
Production and Cement Sand Mortar
Production (Phase Two) was
conducted in 2015 by the University
of Hong Kong. The Phase Two study
focused on formulating practical
river sand

solutions for using

substitutes in Hong Kong and

recommending standards and
specifications after laboratory tests. It
is expected that the study report and
specifications will be published in the

1st quarter of 2016.

Additionally, a new Task Group on
Strategy for Management and
Reduction of Construction and
Demolition Waste in Hong Kong was
late 2015 to work

relevant

established in
with
stakeholders to discuss and agree on

together industry
the strategy for management and
reduction of construction and
demolition waste in Hong Kong. The
Task Group has commenced with a
general review and feasibility study of
the strategy on management and
reduction of construction and
demolition waste in Hong Kong.

Last but not least, a consultancy
service for the survey on the
potential utilisation of prefabrication
yards in Hong Kong was under
preparation and is targeted to
commence in 2016. The study will
if construction

identify industry

stakeholders in Hong Kong are
willing to adopt prefabrication
methods in construction projects and

are ready to switch their current

Committee and Board Reports
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practice to facilitate the use of
prefabrication.

Com-EIT will continue to promulgate

environmental protection and
sustainable construction to the
industry and work hand-in-hand with
industry stakeholders to promote

good practices.
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Committee on Procurement and Subcontracting
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Mr. HO Sing-mo Chairperson of Task Force on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts and
Ad-Hoc Working Group on Procurement Fact Sheets
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Terms of Reference

1 To examine current practices on procurement in relation to project
planning, tendering, contract administration and site supervision and
recommend good practices to improve the quality and cost
effectiveness in delivery of construction contracts.

2 To operate and develop the Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS).

3 To raise the professional standard of subcontractors through providing
value-added services under the SRS.

4 To examine current arrangements for selection and management of
subcontractors and recommend improvements.

5 To promote use of written subcontracts.

6 To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution.
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Committee Report

The Committee on Procurement and
Subcontracting (Com-PNS) continued
to undertake various tasks in 2015 to
foster a healthy and competitive
environment for the procurement of
construction activities. Members
comprising of stakeholders from
across the construction supply chain
were committed to deliver its goals
for the sustainable development of
the construction industry.

A number of publications on
different areas of interest concerning
procurement practices
published on the CIC website in
2015:

were

1 Reference Materials for
Application of Dispute
Resolution in Construction

Contracts (Version 2), an

update to the previous one,

giving the working group’s

recent recommendation of a

two-level nomination for

Expert/Independent Expert

Certifier in the dispute
resolution mechanism;

2 Reference Materials -

Frequently Asked Questions on

NEC3 Collaborative Contracts,

providing a convenient source

of information on matters
concerning the use of NEC3 in

construction projects; and

A comprehensive suite of reference
materials to prepare industry

stakeholders for the enactment of

Committee and Board Reports
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Competition Ordinance in Hong
Kong:
3 Reference Materials -

Frequently Asked Questions on
Competition Law for the

Construction Industry;

Materials -
the
Construction Industry: Dos and

4 Reference
Competition Law for

Don’ts; and
5 Reference Materials -

Competition Law Case Analysis
for the Construction Industry.

Other documents were also under
during 2015 for
publication in 2016:

preparation

6 Reference Materials for
Standard Forms of Domestic
Sub-contract;

7 NEC
Improvement of Fuk Man Road

Case Book on

nullah project; and

8 Standard Form of On-demand
Bond with Conditions.
Further to the memorandum of
understanding for collaboration with
the NEC UK in 2014 to promote the
use of collaborative contracts, 6
sessions of the NEC3: ECC Project
Manager Accreditation Training
Course were conducted in 2015. The
4-day course received 100 delegates

with an average pass rate of 82%.
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In light of the success of the Project
Manager Accreditation Training
Courses, NEC3: ECC Supervisor and
NEC3: TSC Term Services Manager
Accreditation Training Courses will be
introduced in 2016 to further equip
industry stakeholders for the use of

NEC3 in Hong Kong.

To facilitate industry stakeholders to
the
developments on procurement topics

keep abreast of latest

in the construction industry, a

technical seminar on construction
procurement was organised in
November 2015. Three topics were
covered: i) Owner-controlled
Insurance Programme; ii) Selection of
and iii)
The
attended by around 60 people who

Consultants; Competition

Ordinance. seminar was
found the seminar useful to their

daily duties.

The Task Force on Competition Law
had been producing the educational
animation video on bid-rigging in the
construction industry throughout
2015, to

industry to the prohibitions under the

raise awareness of the
new Competition Ordinance in a
more lively manner. The animation
video is expected to be launched in
2016.

Representatives of the CIC and Com-
PNS attended and spoke at different
industry events on procurement
matters, sharing their views on issues
relevant to procurement in the

construction industry.

Committee and Board Reports
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°  Asia Pacific In-house Counsel 8  IZERZRBEIFIRFZEEHIK
Summit 2015 by Executive Koo

Director of the CIC;

o Lighthouse Club Construction
Forum by Chairperson of Task
Force on NEC3 Collaborative
Contracts; and

o NEC Asia-Pacific Users’ Group
Conference 2015 by Executive
Director of the CIC.

As part of the CIC's function to
reflect to the Government the
construction industry’s needs and
the CIC Secretariat

its views on various

aspirations,
submitted
consultations on policy issues
conducted by various bureaux and

departments:

o Security of Payment Legislation
for the Construction Industry;

o Proposed Enactment of
Apology Legislation;

° Arbitration
and

(Amendment) Bill;

o Third party funding for
arbitration.

Com-PNS Members paid a visit to the
Competition Commission in January
2015. Views were exchanged on the
impact of the Competition Ordinance
on the construction industry.
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REFERENCE MATERIALS
COMPETITION LAW CASE ANALYSIS

THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY,

Version
November 2015

,".“'/

Committee and Board Reports
EghZBEg®E

Ei =} \

Phvir

REFERENCE MATERIALS
COMPETITION LAW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

INDUSTRY: DOS AND DON'TS

258N

HERBIR

—&=
BEETE

BT

-3

f ‘ | REFEREN(E MATERIALS

o = : e N CONSTRUCTION COMTRACTS
el B EEER NSO, oumy

: Sl _

- -
N |
5&I%,§

REFERENCE MATERIALS
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS ON
NEC3 COLLABORATIVE CONTRACTS,

2ERH

The Task Force on Enhancements to
Subcontractor Registration Scheme
(SRS)
reviewing holistically the strategic
the SRS
recommending enhancements.

continued its work on
and
The
Task Force made significant progress
further the
composition of the Management
C") of the SRS for a

wider industry representation with

position of

on expanding

Committee ("M

new members from specified trade
unions to be invited to join the MC.

On the other hand, the Task Force
considered further research would be
necessary to gather and analyse
more relevant information as well as
overseas experiences for helping it
deliberate more deeply on various
interrelated issues involved and the
roadmap when making the SRS
mandatory in order to address the
diverse views amongst industry
stakeholders.

With the continued support from the
Government and key employer
organisations for contractually
requiring the engagement of
Registered Subcontractors in their
projects, the number of companies
registered under the SRS steadily
increased by around 150 to a record
high of 5,191 as of the end of 2015.

o FBEWITHEHE TNEC Asia-
Pacific Users’ Group

Conference 2015
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Committee on Productivity and Research
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Terms of Reference

1.
2.

To compile and update key performance indicators.

To examine current productivity level in the Hong Kong construction
industry by introducing measurable indicators for different work
trades.

To benchmark or set standard for the productivity of construction
process.

To provide statistics in relation to productivity.

To recommend strategies to the Council and Boards/Committees for
enhancing the industry’s productivity and competitiveness.

To co-ordinate and promote construction research and development
and facilitate practical

application of research results by the

construction industry.
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Committee Report

In 2015, the Committee on
Productivity and Research (Com-PNR)
rode on the momentum gained since
its establishment and embarked on a
road towards industry transformation.
Initial results were achieved for the
following consultancy projects that
aim to drive productivity of the local
construction industry.

1. Assessing the
Performance of the Hong
Kong Construction
Industry, Key Performance
Indicators An
International Comparison
It is necessary to be aware of
where the Hong Kong
construction industry stands in
the international arena before
appropriate strategies can be
formulated to strengthen our
competitive advantages.
Performance of the local
construction industry is
benchmarked against other

A

Productivity

£END

<

Manpower
AR

Sustainability
CIES3 §:4
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countries through a set of
unified core construction key
performance indicators (KPIs),
which are not only specific to
Hong Kong, but also
comparable to international
counterparts. Through this
comparison, the strengths and
weaknesses of the local
construction industry can be
identified.

The construction KPIs currently
used in Hong Kong and other
selected countries have been
identified and analysed, in
areas including safety,
productivity, sustainability and
manpower (Figure 1). The
existing system of recording,
interpreting and presenting KPIs
will be enhanced while new
KPIs would also be proposed to
allow proper planning for a
more effective performance
monitoring in the future. The
study commenced in 2015 Q2
and is expected to be
completed in 2016 Q3.

Figure 1. Construction KPIs in
specific areas
[81. 5 & 80 05 19 2 32 42 4F
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A Comprehensive
Productivity Appraisal of
the Hong Kong
Construction Industry
The Com-PNR believes that a
comprehensive productivity
appraisal of the Hong Kong
construction industry could help
raise its competitiveness in a
holistic manner. By identifying
the drivers and constraints of
construction productivity in five
areas, namely policy formation,
regulatory requirements,
planning and design, project
management and
administration, and site
construction, measures for
improving productivity levels
would be explored and
formulated for the continuous
improvement of the industry.

Committee and Board Reports
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A systematic approach would
be adopted in understanding
and appraising productivity at
the industry, project and
activity levels (Figure 2). Wide-
ranging drivers and constraints
have been identified, which
could be interactive and
interchangeable with each
other, and dynamic for
different types of construction.
Although site-level activities are
observed to be significantly
important, industry-level policy
and regulatory requirements are
also considered fundamental to
productivity performance. A
system model would be
developed to substantiate the
appraisal of the identified
productivity drivers and
constraints for devising
improvement strategies. The
consultancy project commenced
in 2015 Q4 and is expected to
be completed in 2017 Q2.

ERBREXLEENRET
1
BEZ8gME " —ER4
ENFEEEDHEZEREATE
BEXENGF c BBERRE
BE-BEEEXR RERK
itEBEERITHRARTH
BEShESRETHEREEE
ENEFHEMRS - 55T R
HIEAI BRI EREE NN

i

HEERA—@MESESR
WER - HBNESE IR
MEF & E N (E2) - HEH
AEZEAFEEMEBS - M
BEAF E PR 645 1t B 8 &
B WHAARER EEmE
b ARBERMG  THE
EHNEHEEENRRBEE
BE BEXERAEENBRMNE
EERERZNERBERE
& -frREBFRI-EER
FRBEATERFEEEFTEM
BE 11l A 6] 7E 20 5K BE o Lt R R
IHEM2015FEMERRA - 78

Built Environment and Society

= A o — A== o
EEBERMS FTR2017FE —F 5%

Productivity at industry level
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Policy formation
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Productivity at project level ~
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Regulatory Planning and
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Project '
management and Site construction

Productivity at activity level
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Figure 2. A systematic
framework for understanding
and appraising construction
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Benchmarking the
Construction Trade
Productivity in Hong
Kong

With a view to improving the
overall construction productivity
in Hong Kong, benchmark
indicators at the trade level
would be established through
this study. Critical construction
trades that most affect the
productivity of local building
and infrastructure projects the
most have been identified,
including bar benders and
fixers, concrete and grouting
workers, piling operatives and
plant and equipment operators,
taking into consideration the
trade labour cost, total project
labour cost and the impact of
each trade on the project
construction time. In addition,
the degree of labour shortage
and the level of automation of
the identified critical
construction trades have also
been analysed. The consultant
will continue to investigate the
productivity of these trades
through sample building and
infrastructure projects in order
to benchmark against overseas
performance. The study
commenced in 2015 Q1 and is
expected to be completed in
2016 Q4.

Committee and Board Reports
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Integrating
Constructability in Project
Planning and Design

The study aims to develop
strategies for achieving
optimum integration of
constructability considerations
into the planning and design
process of construction projects
in Hong Kong. Constructability
is concerned with making the
building development process
more cost effective and time
efficient during the entire
project life cycle. Application of
constructability principles would
be desirable for the industry to
minimise errors, delays,
disputes and cost overruns. By
integrating construction
knowledge and experience in
the planning and design
process, the overall project
objectives could be achieved at
an optimum level.

The Constructability is viewed
as potentially adding value to
the industry and would be of
utmost importance to the
Com-PNR. It is believed that it
would provide a detailed
insight into the commonalities
of proven improvement
measures, hence facilitating
effective strategies to be
implemented for enhancing
constructability in the local
construction industry. The
consultancy project s
scheduled to commence in
2016.
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Construction Automation
and Robotics

Being the coordinating body of
the industry, the CIC is taking
the lead in pushing the
boundaries and bringing the
industry’s competitiveness to
the next level. We ride the
waves of change to anticipate
and meet evolving challenges
by promoting game-changing
initiatives such as modular
design and fabrication, Building
Information Modelling (BIM), as
well as construction
automation and robotisation.
These initiatives are needed to
spur the industry to re-invent
construction processes and

CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL
BERHE

Committee and Board Reports

ensure that stakeholders in the
value chain work in an
integrated manner from the
beginning of their projects for
efficiency enhancement.

Worldwide experience has
revealed that adopting
automation technologies will
not only help enhance
productivity and quality, but
also make construction sites
much cleaner and safer, and
consequently attract more
talent to the construction
industry. Hence, the Com-PNR
decided to engage a team of
overseas experts in the field of
construction automation to
critically examine the
practicality of introducing
automation technologies to the
local industry and formulate
strategies for their
implementation in 2016. It is
expected that the above
consultancy projects could
continue to enhance the overall
performance of the
construction industry in Hong
Kong and maximise benefits to
all stakeholders.
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CIC Innovation Award

The Com-PNR co-organised the
inaugural CIC Innovation Award
(Figure 4) with the Committee
on Environment, Innovation and
Technology, to showcase the
innovative ideas in the
construction industry. The
Award received overwhelming
support in Hong Kong and
from overseas. Submissions in
construction materials,
technology and management
came from a wide range of
stakeholders, including
manufacturers, contractors,
consultants, architectural firms,
authorities and academics. The
Judging Panel, consisting of a
diverse group of well-known

g Clc

Committee and Board Reports
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construction professionals and
experts, selected 8 winning
projects that were the best of
the best. A special category for
young innovators was also set
up to encourage new talented
professionals and celebrate their
early accomplishments in the
industry.

Last but not least, the second
issue of CIC Research Journal —
Innovation in Construction
(iCON) (Figure 3), which
summarised the efforts and
outcomes generated from the
CIC funded research projects in
the past year, was published in
November 2015 to advocate
innovation in the industry.

/ INNOVATION
ALWARD
REXZGRAIFR

Sustainable innovation drives transformation

g2 % 8

B
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Objections Board

REERHEEEZEES

Membership List

RERE

Convenor

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun

AEA
EftE BLTIREM

CIC Members

HEEHE

Sr LAI Yuk-fai, Stephen

Ms. Melissa Kaye PANG

FEIBKE R B
ZHE &+

Terms of Reference

1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under section 55
of the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (CICO) and under
section 29 of the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance.

BESE

1. BERCGEEXZEHRODFSSFERCGEE R
T A GE MR 51) 5529 16 $2 38 4855k K Bf
BOREEHER -

Board Report

By virtue of section 56 of the CICO, the Objections Board has the
power to confirm, cancel or reduce the levy or surcharge. During the
year 2015, there was no objection case lodged by a contractor on
the levy assessed by the CIC.
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Construction

Industry Training Board
REFINIREE

Construction Industry Training Board

BEXIREES

Membership List

Chairperson

ES

I

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick TR ELIEM
Mr. CHAN Pat-kan BRAR K&
Ms. CHENG Sau-kuen BHEB L
Prof. CHIANG Yat-hung BB HE
Sr CHONG Wing-hong, Benjamin #EK B ORI 2 ED
Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert ARRE TRRE
Mr. LAI Sai-hong Bt £4E
Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert MEE k&
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert MRE K&
Mr. LEUNG Yuk-keung REE K&
Mr. NG Kwok-kwan REHE KL
Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung HIKFR TREE
Mr. SZE Kyran HERE k4%
Mr. TSE Chun-yuen IR KE
Terms of Reference BEsEE

1.
2.

To provide training courses for the construction industry.

To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry.

To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in the
placement of persons who have completed training courses provided
for the construction industry.

To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any kind
of work involving or in connection with the construction industry, to
conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award certificates of
attendance or competence, and to establish the standards to be
achieved in respect of any such work.

To advise on manpower planning and development for construction
personnel at professional, supervisory and craftsman levels.

To foster an ethical culture.
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Board Report

Infrastructure has always been an
important element for the steady
growth of Hong Kong's economy.
The construction industry in Hong
Kong has been thriving in recent
with the
construction projects forecasted to

years volume of
remain high and on a steady uptrend
in the next decade. To cater for the
manpower demand of the industry,
the Construction Industry Training
Board (CITB) started to study the
situation of the
industry in 2008 to
forecast the demand for a workforce

manpower
construction
ranging from workers to
professionals.

The “Construction Manpower Seminar
2015" which was co-organised by the
CIC and the Development Bureau was
successfully held on 30 March 2015
at ZCB. Over 70 participants from the
construction industry attended the
seminar to learn about the current
manpower situation, challenges and
training strategies. They also shared
their
suggestions on the

valuable opinions and
issues of
manpower shortage and future
development strategies. The seminar
was to brief stakeholders on the “CIC
Manpower Model” of 2014 regarding
the forecast of manpower ranging
from construction workers, site
supervisory personnel, technicians to
professionals. The CIC also briefed the
participants about current training
supply
strategies. Meanwhile, the CIC
consulted the stakeholders for their

works and manpower

views on the proposed professional

Construction Industry Training Board
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Construction Manpower Seminar 2015

BEEN BRI G E2015

development and progression
pathways of construction personnel,
which would be used as a reference
when studying and formulating

training strategies.

In view of rapid expansion of major
infrastructure together with public
and private construction projects,
enormous demand for manpower is
skilled
workers of different trades. Thus,
skilled
workers and close co-operation with

anticipated, especially for

enhancement in training
stakeholders will be one of the major
tasks of the CIC.
encourage the semi-skilled workers to

In order to
become skilled workers, as
announced under the 2015 Policy
Address, the Government will provide
$100 million to the CIC, whereas the
CIC will deploy its resources and this
funding to launch a new pilot
scheme, i.e. “Advanced Construction
Manpower Training Scheme — Pilot”.
This
September 2015 and a quota of

scheme was launched in

1,000 semi-skilled workers has been
set.
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ACMTS Launching Ceremony
HETE5EE B EE

During the year, in order to attract a
the
construction industry and enhance
their the CIC
continued to the
our

young workforce to join
competitiveness,
integrate
progression pathways for
graduates to facilitate their future
development in multi pathways. To
with the

development, training places offered

cope industry’s
by the CITB increased progressively
over the past few years. The number
of graduates in 2015 was 5,217,
comprising 4,918 full-time graduates
who had attained the skill level of
and 299
graduates who had achieved the

semi-skilled workers

competency level of site supervisory
personnel/technicians. In 2015, the
CIC also provided part-time courses
for 73,336 practitioners of the
construction industry. Apart from

offering Basic Craft Courses,

Construction Industry Training Board

BEXIREZESE

Supervisor/Technician Programmes
and Adult Short Courses, the CIC has
been working with the industry in
launching a number of co-operative
The CIC's co-
included main

training schemes.
operative partners
contractors, sub-contractors, trade
associations and labour unions. The
total enrolment number for these co-
operative training schemes was 552

in 2015.

While strengthening our training
efforts, the Trade Testing Centre
introduced a series of measures
following the implementation of
“designated workers for designated
skills”
Workers Registration (Amendment)
(the Ordinance). These
included the launch of

trade test application mobile apps,

under the Construction

Ordinance
measures

an increase in the number of trade
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testing workstations and their
mobility, and enhancement of the
workflow efficiency, environment and
facilities of the Trade Testing Centre,
etc. These measures greatly
shortened the waiting time, enabling
the construction practitioners to
become registered workers of
designated skills in timely compliance
In 2015, the

total number of applicants for trade

with the Ordinance.

testing exceeded 20,000. Moreover,
an Ethnic Minority Service Team was
set up, to enhance services to ethnic
minorities.

Last but not least, the CIC
participated in the 43rd WorldSkills
Competition, which was held in Sao
Paulo, Brazil in August 2015. The
CIC’s delegation entered four events,
tiling,
plumbing and heating, painting and

including wall and floor

decorating, and joinery. It s
encouraging that a Medallion for
Excellence was awarded to Mr. HUI
Yip-keung in the wall and floor tiling

competition.

The CITB will continue to forge closer
ties with the
training and testing works,

industry, enhance
and
implement measures to facilitate the
long-term development of the

industry.

Construction Industry Training Board
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HUI Yip-keung from Wall and Floor Tiling
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Construction

Workers Registration Board
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Construction Workers Registration Board

BEXTIAZMEZEES
Chairperson TE
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul HEA XX
Mr. CHAN Cheung-hing, Thomas BRF®E £4
Mr. CHAN Chi-hin RS &
Ir CHAN Chi-ming PREB T2
Ir CHAN Loong Geoffrey PREE T72H
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu BEE &
Mr. FAN Cheung-fung BRE &4
Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan TR &%
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul &R |t
Mr. HO Wai-wah EE &4
Dr. KUANG Jun-shang BEE EL
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen BEY IEM
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence mHE KL
Ir PANG Yiu-hung, Eric CRIE TR
Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex IRE &£
Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice REX zt
Mr. YU Wai-wai RER K&
Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo RGE TREM
Prof. YUEN Kwok-kit, Richard REI# #R
Terms of Reference BEHE
1. To set the qualification requirements for registration or renewal of 1. % AL ek FE AR BR ) B AR AR TE

registration;
2. To act on and discharge tasks in regard to the Construction Workers 2. RIERAITCREET ARG T8

Registration Ordinance, which include inspection of construction sites, WIE BREKETH  HET AW -
conducting construction workers registration, handling review and REFHAIMOBEZR LF #EI MG
appeal cases relating to workers registration, maintaining the Daily HE#awss &

Attendance Records of construction sites, and so on; and
3. To perform and exercise such other functions or powers as are imposed 3. BITRTEREEZS R THEM B
on it by the Construction Industry Council. e
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Board Report

The Construction Workers
Registration Board (CWRB) and its
sub-committees and task forces,
namely the Sub-committee on
Registration Matters, Sub-committee
on Senior Workers Assessment, Task
the
Remaining Phase of the Prohibition of

Force on Promotion on

Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (CWRO),
Construction Workers Registration

Task Force on

System and Task Force on Data
Analysis, put substantive effort into
implementing the Construction
Workers Registration (Amendment)
Ordinance (CWR(A)O) which became
April 2015. Two
important dates came into effect
associated with the CWR(A)O. The
“designated workers for designated
skills”

on 1 April 2017. By then, workers

effective on 1

provision will be implemented

must enrol as Registered Skilled or
Semi-skilled Workers of designated
trade divisions to carry out the
relevant skilled works independently
on construction sites. In addition, the
one-off senior workers registration
arrangement was launched in April
2015, running for 18 months till 30
September 2016.

In order to facilitate co-ordinated and
smooth implementation of the
CWR(A)O amendments, the CWRB
and its sub-committees and task
forces brought together stakeholders
and industry experts to brainstorm,
plan and execute various strategies
and measures to enable the industry

to get well prepared for the

Construction Workers Registration Board

EETAGTMZES

implementation of the “designated

workers for designated skills”

provision.

Execution of CWRO and
Preparation for the
Implementation of Designated
Workers for Designated Skills
The senior workers registration
arrangement was launched under a
defined framework and procedures
to ensure an impartial mechanism
is in place to assess the skilled
work experience of senior workers.
To execute the senior workers
registration arrangement and to
promote the CWRO,

team was set up in the year to provide

an outreach

registration services at construction
sites. In addition, 36 trade unions
helped verify workers' experience
for the senior workers registration
arrangement. Through the concerted
efforts of the CIC and the industry,
18,849 applications were received as

of 31 December 2015.

A task force was set up with a view
to mapping out a strategy and
providing recommendations to

promote and raise the industry
awareness and understanding of the
significance of the stipulations under
the CWR(A)O. A

promotional initiatives was launched

series of
during the vyear, including briefing
sessions and lunchtime seminars,
promotion on various media such as
TV, radio

production and distribution of print

and newspapers,

marketing collateral and giveaways,
outdoor billboards and banners at
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private and public construction sites

and, particularly, in more densely

populated urban areas, cross-
promotion through social media,
mobile applications and SMS

marketing. Promotion targeting
workers of ethnic minorities was also

done.

The Construction Workers
Registration System (CWRS) Wave 1
(without biometric integration) was
in December 2015 after
two years’ development. The
objective of the CWRS is to adopt
new information technologies to

launched

enhance the effectiveness of
collecting and submiting daily
attendance records (DAR) of workers
by contractors as required by the
CWRO. Under the CWRS, contractors
can use an Android card-reading
device with NFC function or the CIC

Device, with the free CIC Daily

Construction Workers Registration Board

BEEXETIAGMZES

CIC Cloud Qﬁ

: s STl

B = Ui

Internet

L4

Construction Workers
Registration Card

BIEET AT

Attendance Record Application (CIC
DAR App) installed to collect and
submit DAR.
workers would be able to handle

Contractors and
daily operations and manage DAR

through the online system,
streamline registration procedure for
first-entry workers, and check
workers’ information using mobile

devices.

To ensure a smooth and seamless
transition to the new system, a series
of briefing sessions have been
organised for contractors on a
regular basis, from

December 2015.

starting

Preparation of the Code of Practice
on reasonable measures of
Instruction and Supervision has kick-
started. The aim is to provide
practical guidance to contractors and

workers on complying with the
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relevant requirements of “designated
workers for designated skills”. A
Working Group comprising of
representatives from the contractor,
subcontractor and trade union
segments was set up to deliberate
practical suggestions. In order to
facilitate the finalisation of the Code
of Practice, two rounds of trial at 30
construction sites of various nature
were conducted, followed by a
number of briefing sessions to collect
feedback and opinions extensively
from industry practitioners. The Code
of Practice is targeted to be finalised

in 2016.

Inspection and Enforcement

To ensure the relevant parties have
the
requirements as stipulated
CWRO, the CIC
conducted inspections and performed

complied with statutory
in the

Inspection Team

compliance checks throughout the
year. Areas of inspection included:

Briefing session on Construction Workers

Registration System
BEFRTATMEZEN &

Construction Workers Registration Board

BEXRTAGEMEZES

o To check whether a card
reading device and the register
of statement are provided by
principal contractors on
construction sites;

o To randomly select construction
workers to ascertain the
validity of their workers
registration cards;

o To check whether the daily
attendance records are
submitted by principal
contractors; and

o To investigate and collect
evidence in the event of non-
compliance, and initiate legal
proceedings if necessary.

In 2015, the inspection team
checked 15,192 registration cards
and 1,502 construction sites. A total
of 64 cases of non-compliance were
prosecuted and convicted by the

court.

EEERTIATRAABBE ERGE
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ABRERWEF  REINA A
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To prepare for the implementation of
the
designated skills”

“designated workers for
provision, the CIC
Inspection Team conducted trial
inspections as if the requirement of
“designated workers for designated
skills”
total

had come into operation. A
of 50 trial
conducted. The Inspection Team also

inspections were

took the opportunity to brief and
explain to the frontline supervisory
the
construction workers about the

staff of contractors and
details and obligations under the
new requirement.

Workers Registration

As of 31 December 2015, there were
368,981 workers with valid
registration under the CWRO. To
analyse manpower supply in the
construction industry, we conducted
three telephone surveys in January,
June and September 2015 to gauge
the employment situation and
respect of
in the

industry. The yearly

manpower supply in
common trade divisions
construction
workers registration data analysis
from 1 January to 31 December
2015 has been uploaded to the CIC
website for public reference.

Construction Workers Registration Board

EETAGTMZES

Enhanced Registration
Services

We strived to provide workers with
better services and make every effort
to achieve continuous improvement.

o Enhanced Outreaching
A dedicated
outreach team has been set up

Service -

since August 2015 to visit and

promote senior workers

registration arrangement
directly to workers at different
construction sites on a daily
basis. The team also assists
eligible workers to prepare
applications and helps those
who have less than 10 years’
work experience to apply for
trade tests in order to obtain
the necessary qualifications to

register as skilled workers.

o Peak Season of Registration

Renewal — The peak season of
registration renewal
handled

efficient

was
smoothly in an
manner by
the
process. The total number of

streamlining renewal

renewal of
in the

applications for
registration processed
year was 125,000.

o Average the Cyclical Pattern
of Registration Renewal — A
temporary special measure of a
3-year renewal fee waiver has
been adopted in order to

average out the cyclical pattern

of demand for registration

renewal in 2020.
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To provide workers with accessible,
integrated and one-stop services, the
CIC has selected popular locations
near the MTR network and realigned
the business hours of four workers
registration service points. The CIC
Service Centre (Tsing Yi), the second
service centre in an MTR station,
commenced operation on 4 January
2016. The new service centre is four
times bigger than the first located in
Nam Cheong MTR Station. With
increased capacity, the new service
centre serves up to 400 visitors per
This
platform provides a wider range of

day. enhanced one-stop

services to workers, including
registration and renewal applications,
training courses and trade tests
applications and enquiries about

other CIC services.

Workers Welfare

After 5 years of development, the
CIC Scholarship for Family Members
of Registered Construction Workers
has gained wide recognition from the
industry. The number of applications
increased sevenfold over the past 5
years and reached a new record high
in 2015.

A total
awarded to the children of registered

of 20 scholarships were

construction workers who had
achieved impressive academic results
in 2015 HKDSE. To show our support
and encouragement to those who
were admitted to disciplines related
local

to construction in tertiary

institutions, a student who was

admitted to the Bachelor of Science

Construction Workers Registration Board

BEXRTAGEMEZES

in Surveying programme at the
University of Hong Kong was given
The
presentation ceremony was held at

an extra scholarship.
the Construction Industry Resource
Centre in Kowloon Bay on 26
September 2015.

Furthermore, workers with valid
registration cards can continue to
enjoy discounts and promotional
benefits for consumer goods or
healthcare services offered by local
in the
Workers Welfare Programme. In
addition,
offered basic medical examination at
a subsidised fee of HK$10 under the
Medical Examination Scheme to make

merchants participating

registered workers are

sure they are physically fit for work.
In 2015, 3,149 workers from 108
construction sites participated in the
scheme.

The Way Forward 2016

2016 will continue to be a challenging
and fulfilling year for the CWRB as
preparation work for the
implementation of CWR(A)O enters the
final stage. We will continue to work
closely with industry stakeholders, in
particular, contractors, subcontractors
and workers who play significant roles
in the implementation of the CWRO.
The ultimate aim is to further enhance
skill
management which would benefit the

site and trade-related
industry at large. Our promotional and
outreach efforts will be increasingly
extensive, targeted and efficient, and
to include direct communications and

partnerships with stakeholders to
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Scholarships for Family Members of
Registered Construction Workers 2015
2015F B ERABELMEERTAZE

extend our reach before the deadline

of senior workers registration
arrangement on 30 September 2016.
We will also take the CWRS to the
next phase by integrating biometric
features to facilitate contractors’
adoption of the CWRS. Under the
leadership of the CWRB, the workers
registration system and services will
continue to be optimised in order to
contribute to the sustainable
development of the construction

industry of Hong Kong.

Construction Workers Registration Board
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Sponsored

and Supported Events
BN EFEE

2015 Supported Events / 201537 & & &

Date AH
6 January 2015
201541 H6H

9 January 2015
20151 H9H

24 January 2015
201514241

28 February 2015
201542 H28H
11 March 2015
201543H11H

14-20 March 2015
2015%F3H14-20H

19 March 2015
2015438198

21 March 2015
201593 H21H

23 March 2015
20159 3A23H

24-25 March 2015
201553 H24-25H

28 March 2015
201543 H28H

1 April 2015
201544818

Organiser X P&
The Hong Kong Green Building Council
EEREREERS

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
REERFFUEMES

Joint College Environmental Innovation Alliance

RRIF R g

Dashun Policy Research Centre
A 5% BUR B AL
Department of Justice

#H A

Buildings Department
EFE

Hong Kong Construction Arbitration Centre; Centre

for Chinese Law, Faculty of Law,
The University of Hong Kong
BREREMEPL
EBERBLFEERFBEEHREFL

Society of Operations Engineers (Hong Kong Region);

Chartered Association of Building Engineers
LETRMEG(FENS)
REGTRETRMGE

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Building,

Civil and Logistics & Transportation Divisions
ERIRMEBE —BESH £ASH
MR KkE® D E

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers —
Environmental Division
BEAEIRMES — RFHHP

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
EERENDE

The Association of Consulting Engineers of Hong

Kong

EEERIREMGE
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Event Name SEE1 & 78

Launching Ceremony of “Hong Kong Green
Building Product Labelling Scheme”
[FEREEmRETE IR E

RICS International Heritage Conservation
Conference 2015
HEERFHAEMBEXNRE

B B W 51 & 2015

JCEIA Annual Conference 2015

Open Forum on “Voluntary Health
Insurance Scheme”

[BREE R & | AW E

“Mediate First” Pledge Reception 2015
[RABALIR#ERSS

Building Safety Week 2015
0155 BF L 2R

HKCAC/HKU Conference 2015

2015 Joint Symposium of Occupational
Safety & Health in Building Industry

Seminar on “Transforming the Steel Supply
Chain — Off-site Processing”

Workshop on BIM in Environmental
Protection

Cross-Strait Architectural Design Symposium
and Awards 2015

Seminar on “Safety — it starts with good
design”



Date B

14-19 April 2015
20154 514-19H

7 May 2015
201545878

13 May 2015
201545 A13H

29 May 2015
2015458 29H

June—-December 2015
20154 6-12 A

5 June 2015
201596 A5H

12 June 2015
201567128

24-25 June 2015
201546 H24-25H

24-25 June 2015,
22-23 September 2015,
26-27 November 2015
201596 524-258
201549/22-238 »
2015411 426-27H

27 June 2015
201556 A27H

15 July 2015
2015478158

17 July 2015
2015478178

Sponsored and Supported Events

EBE R

Organiser = # ##

Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply

Chain Management Enabling Technologies

BEEMRRAEEEIRREBRMHED L

BEAM Society Limited
BERRIAEHE

The Lighthouse Club — Hong Kong Branch
HiEe

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
BEMERER

Green Council
RIREES

Society of Operations Engineers Hong Kong Region

ZEIRMBE(FENE)

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board

WERNERAMEEEZES

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Materials

Division

ERIEMEE — MR

Hong Kong Science & Technology Parks Corporation

BEREMBERATF

The Institution of Engineering and Technology

BERIRERMES

Hong Kong Housing Authority
EEFEZE®

Hong Kong Constructional Metal Structures

Event Name FE &%

LSCM Roadshow 2015
2015 LSCMEE &

3rd BEAM Affiliate Training
F3EAERBEAE

Construction Risk Management Conference
2015: "Managing Health & Safety and
Commercial Risks Effectively”

HKQAA Symposium 2015
BEEmEREREBH §2015

Hong Kong Green Awards 2015
BB % KH#2015

2015 SOEHK Symposium “Reaching the
Next Level of Health, Safety and
Environmental Management by New
Technology and Innovation”

Conference on Understanding of Asbestos
Containing Materials cum Guidebook
Launching Ceremony

RAZABOBN T CEREEREDE

Materials Science and Technology in
Engineering Conference (MaSTEC 2015)

APAC Innovation Summit 2015: Robotics
(June 2015) Smart Cities (September 2015)
Materials and Precision Engineering
(November 2015)

25K Bl # 18 £ 2015 « HE A A BT
(201546 7) & 86 5l 1 (20154 9A)
REDH(Q015F11A)

Annual BIM Forum

Site Safety Forum 2015
T % 2 57 €2015

Technical Seminar on Effective Design and

Association; the Department of Civil & Environmental Construction to Structural Eurocodes

Engineering of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University

EAREECBERBHE
EBBIRE —+AMREIRER
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Date B

19-20 July 2015
20159 7H19-20H

30 July 2015
2015 7H30H

12 September 2015
201549 H12H

8 October 2015
20159 10H8H

19-20 October 2015
2015410419-20H

26-27 October 2015
20154F10H26-27H

28-31 October 2015
2015410428-31H

14 November 2015
201511 A14H

16 November 2015
2015911 A16H

December 2015-
February 2016
2015412 A 201642 A

Sponsored and Supported Events

EBE R

Organiser = # ##

Hang Seng Management College
BEERBR

BEAM Society Limited
BERRIBE

Dashun Policy Research Centre
REREHRRH D

BEAM Society Limited
BERRIHBE

Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply

Chain Management Enabling Technologies

BEYR R EEEIEEB M EHL

United Nations Economic and Social Commission for

Asia and the Pacific
BMAEBTNRALTFEEHLEEZES

Messe Frankfurt (HK) Ltd; Hong Kong Trade
Development Council

ERRBEREFER)ERLR:BBEER

Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors; Australian Institute

of Quantity Surveyors
EENEMEE WNIEHEE

BEAM Society Limited
BERRIMEHE

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects Biennale

Foundation

ERREAMBEEFREDT S
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Event Name FE &%

Symposium on Sustainability and Bamboo

29th BEAM Pro Training & Examination
FOEREES RN RESR

Health Forum on Hypertension
BRABEE —20E

4th BEAM Affiliate Training
FSaEmEBAE

LSCM Logistic Summit 2015
2015 LSCMI R @ &

Asia Carbon Footprint Conference 2015

Eco Expo Asia

BERRREE

HKIS and AIQS Joint Conference

30th BEAM Pro Training & Examination
FIEFEESHIEEH

2015-16 Hong Kong & Shenzhen Bi-City
Biennale of Urbanism \ Architecture (Hong
Kong)
015-16RBRT\ELEREFE
(B#)



Sponsored and Supported Events

EBE R

2015 Sponsored Events / 2015% B 5EZ &)

Date HHi

1 September 2014-
28 February 2016
201459R1HZ
201642 F28H

October 2014-June 2015
2014108 £2015%6A4

October 2014-
September 2015

2014F10A £2015%9A

2015
20154F

2015
20154

2015
20154

7-9 January 2015
201541 H7-9H

6-7 March 2015
201593 A6-7H

10 March 2015
201543 A10H

14-20 March 2015
20153 H14-20H

20 March 2015
201593 A20H

20-21 March 2015
2015%3H20-21H

23 March 2015
20159 3A23H

Organiser £ P18

Hong Kong Institution of Certified Auditors
EREXERMES

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

BHRAIEMEe
The Chartered Institute of Building
RERTRESRS

World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong
tREAREEEELE

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Safety

Specialist Committee
EREIRMEE — 22 IREEEHEES

The Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health

Association

EEREREHLEHE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University — Faculty of
Construction and Environment and Research Institute

for Sustainable Urban Development

BERABIAR — BERREBRIAUFENTH

ESSEA

E&M Trade Promotion Group
BEXHEETHENE

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
BEIRMES®

The University of Hong Kong — Department of
Architecture

ERARE —REER

The Lighthouse Club — Hong Kong Branch
HEe

Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
B hEEe

China Green Building (HK) Council
TEGEELEERE(BB)EES
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Event Name SEE1 &£ 718

SME Development Fund Project

Building Surveyor Awards 2015
B 50 & Bh K 822015

Construction Manager of the Year Awards
2014

Walk for Nature 2015
# & RB 2015

Student Project Competition

Safety Bulletin = 2015
Z 2@ — 2015

2nd International Conference on
Sustainable Urbanization

E&M Exhibition 2015
BEBE2015 — £EFHE

Building Division 14th Annual Seminar
“Pursuing Excellence in Buildings and
Construction”

Cutting Edge: The Detailing of Architectural
Envelopes

Hong Kong Safety Awards 2015

A Century — Shaping the Future of
Arbitration

Hong Kong Forum in the 11th International
Conference on Green and Energy-Efficient
Building & New Technologies and Product
Expo

0155+ —ERBRERE
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Date B

28 March-15 April 2015
201543 H28H £4H15H

April 2015-March 2016
201544 £2016F3H

20 April 2015
2015444200

24 April 2015
20154 724R

6-9 May 2015
201565H6-9H

8-9 May 2015
20155H8-9H

12 May 2015
201565H12H

21 May 2015
2015458218

11-17 June 2015
20156 A411-17H

26 June 2015
20156 A26H

3 July 2015
20154 7A3H

4 July 2015
20159 7H4H

5 July 2015
201547858

10 July 2015
2015478108

2-8 August 2015
201548 H2-8H

Sponsored and Supported Events

EBE R

Organiser X ##

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
ERIRMEY

Hong Kong Concrete Institute

BEERRLES

Hong Kong Industrial Safety Association
BERIEREME

Institution of Civil Engineers
RELATEMESE

The Inter-Pacific Bar Association

RAVFREHE

The Hong Kong Institute of Value Management;

SAVE International
EHEEBEEEREZ  XHEBEELIEHS

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers — Safety

Specialist Committee

ERIRMEE —22TREEEHKEZES

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
HIFRAEMmEs

Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited
EMEREE

The Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong

Kong
BRI ATIRMEGEEEN S

Society of Registered Safety Officers
Atz EHeE

Hong Kong Coalition of Professional Services

BEREXBE

Association for Rights of Industrial Accident Victims

ITXBTU RS

ICES - bSHK BIM Centre of Excellence
ICES — bSHK BIM #F %% b

Vis East Moot Foundation Ltd
ERRFESEARAA
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Event Name SEE & 78

“Engineering and You” Programme 2015
T2 B {R2015

Update of Product Conformity Certification
Scheme for Tile Adhesive and Repair
mortar

HKISA 30th Anniversary Conference

ICE HKA Annual Conference 2015

25th Annual Meeting & Conference

Joint HKIVM-SAVE International Conference
2015
EREEEEREGLIEEEIEHEH
MR B BR & 22015

HKIE SSC 20th Anniversary Conference

RICS Annual Conference 2015

“CONNECTION"” Charitable Photo
Exhibition
HeBZEZRYR

The 14th Annual Power Symposium 2015

SRSO Afternoon Symposium

Young Coalition Professional Group — Youth
Forum 2015
EXBMBEFE — FFEXRRB2015

Occupational Safety & Health Stretching
Exercise and Athletics Competition

BELZ2BRARERLE

The 1st Shanghai “Global BIM” Summit
cum BIM Construction Project Exhibition
L& TGlobal BIMJ B & & % B BIM £¢
HEIERES

Young Mediator’s Mediation Competition
Hong Kong



Date B

18 August 2015
201568 H18H

12 September 2015
201549 H12H

18 September 2015
2015%9A18H

22 September 2015
2015694221

October 2015-March 2016
20154108 £20164%F3 A

9-10 October 2015
2015410 49-10H

28 October 2015
20154 10H28H

November 2015
2015411 A

14 November 2015
201511 A14H

19 November 2015
2015%11 819H

20 November 2015
20155114208

5 December 2015
2015412 A5H

9 December 2015
2015412 A9H

12 December 2015
2015%F12 A128

16 December 2015
201512 4168

Sponsored and Supported Events

EBE R

Organiser X ##

The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology
BEMRKE

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

ERAEMES

The Lighthouse Club — Hong Kong Branch
HEe

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

BEREZEE

Labour Department
L1k

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers; Shanghai
Association for Science & Technology
BREIRMEBG: LETHRERTHE

The Hong Kong Institute of Building Information
Modelling
BEEREGRERES

The Institution of Civil Engineers Hong Kong
Association

EETATRMECEERENE

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors; Australian
Institute of Quantity Surveyors
EENEMEE  RMNAIEMES

The Hong Kong Institute of Building Information
Modelling
BERREGELEERS

Hong Kong Concrete Institute

EERRLES

Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service
Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen; ICES-bSHK
BIM Centre of Excellence
RYTRIERBRKIREESIEREEER  ICES
- bSHK BIM #ff %5 B

buildingSMART Hong Kong
The Hong Kong Institute of Building Information

Modelling
EEREGEERES

The University of Hong Kong
BERE

95

Event Name SEE & 78

Technical Forum — The Current Status of
Global BIM Standards

HKIS Annual Conference 2015
BEHAEME S FEH T 22015

The Lighthouse Club Contractors’ Dinner
and Safety Awards 2015

Directors’ Symposium 2015
E R 5 82015

Construction Industry Safety Award
Scheme 2015/16
FEEE L 2 RE)F 2120152016

Hong Kong and Shanghai Symposium on
Science and Technology

BEMRAENNE

HKIPM = HKIBIM Joint Conference
EHRBEEEESZe — BAREGSER

SeBAamMIE

ICE HKA G&S Beijing Delegation 2015
ICE HKA G&S 4t R 32 7t B2015

HKIS and AIQS Joint Conference

HKIBIM-CIC Conference 2015
WFEARECERRESRBEER
RHHE

HKCI Annual Seminar 2015

“BIM & Smart City” Summit Forum —
Shenzhen, Qianhai

[BIMEE B T R IIFT 8 2 &R 18

2015 buildingsSMART IFC Workshop
Seminar

HKIBIM-CIC BIM Academia Papers
Presentation and BIM Showcase 2015

First International Construction Innovation
Conference



VENTS
CALENDAR 2015

/é E)J E] [0

Jan — A

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY RESOURCE CENTRE

BEFEAHO

.

06 January —A7<H

I =F1 Meeting with Students from Nanyang

Technological University of Singarpore
HENMEEFETIASE4EH
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Events Calendar 2015
2015F 8 B &%

16 January — A+ < H 20 January —B =+H
[l Media Luncheon with Institution of [l Meeting with The Competition Commission
Civil Engineers HEBEREREEREH

HERFBLATREME@RTERFE
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Events Calendar 2015
2015F 8 B &%
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21 January —A=1+—H 22 January —A=+=H

[ =@ North District Recruitment and Training [l Meeting with The Australian Chamber of
Expo 2015 Commerce — Hong Kong and Macau
it [& 18 B2 & 5 9l 18 B 22015 HEBMBPMBMNE
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Events Calendar 2015 o ‘*“f
20155 ) B 3% | ohe

23, 26 & 28 January 29 January —A =T hH
—A=t=-=+Xx>=1tN\H

[l Briefing Sessions on “On-Site Trial Scheme of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
Reasonable Measures” (Round 1) HAEEKETREmKee

[ Meeting with The Hong Kong Federation of

[AEERTIHERTEIE - REN S
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Events Calendar 2015
20155 ) H ik

EHII‘EIEFH*“IEEE =EEmE

Good Housekeeping Forum and Award Presentatlon” 4

4-2-2015

; RN B N
Occummonat Swrery ¢ Heaum Councat

04 February — A MM H 05 February — A& H

El Good Housekeeping Forum and Award El Meeting with Safety and Health at Work Promotion
Presentation 2014-15 Association (SHAWAT) from Thailand
RUETHESHERESZFEEBREMRL2014-15 B Zx BISHAWAT & [
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06 February — A7<H 09 - 13 February —_A L BZ+=H

Bl Award Presentation Ceremony of Lift/Escalator B Engineering and Construction Contract (ECC)
Work Safety Improvement Case/Suggestion Project Manager Accreditation Programme
Compeiiien A0-4200 FIRARIRREANERLERERR
AR BRI EL2REEAR ERLE
2014 /201558 2 #4328

|
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20155 ) H ik

Feb — H

BIEEXTA
AfMERE

Clc 8% A

10 February — A+ H

B = Press Briefing Session on Construction
Workers Registration (Amendment)
Ordinance 2014
0145 BB % T AGE M (BET) 501D
mEHRE

;§arx‘ Cocktail Reception
{
- BIET oy

23 February —_A=+=H

CIC 8th Anniversary Cocktail Reception
REXHZG ) \BAFES
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24 February —_A=+MAH 28 February —_A=1/\H

Bl Inaugural Workshop on BIM by European El  Recruitment Day of Sub-contractor Cooperative
Commission Training Scheme
B Z B8 g HRBIMI{EY DBEBEERIFERER
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Mar

02 & 09 March =A=-HRK N B 06 — 07 March = AxHZtH

E Building Information Modelling Management Training Bl E&M Career Expo 2015 — Career Planning
BEFEREREREEI WEHIEE2015 — £EHFRE

04 March = A H 10 March = A+H

B Planning Meeting for “World Sustainable Built B Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Plumbing
Environment Conference 2017" and Sanitary Ware Trade Association
[2017F EEBAIHBEREERE 2GR HETESES — BAKGRREAERS

== A 2
£z

|
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BIM EXCELLENCE AWARDS 2014
i CONSTRUCTIOhuNNOVAT.ORE_‘ BIM.

11 March = 8+—A8H

H - B Building Information Modelling (BIM)
Excellence Awards Presentation 2014

20148 iR S B B SRR BR g

Bl Meeting with The Hong Kong Registered
Contractors Association

HEBIMAEZERES S

12 - 13 March = A+=HBZ+=H

105

Participated in Mong Kok Job Expo — “Building a
Multi-culture Workplace” (Labour Department)
2EFAREBE — [HAlZ ot TIERM]
BTER)
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Events Calendar 2015
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s . Y
RISE T0 THE
LLENGE

17 March = A+ +tH

Bl Trade Sharing — Course Advisory Panel of

Computer Aided Drafting
NESZTE —BEIREHBHHMGRE
B ] AR

Meeting with Shenzhen Municipal Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau
HRITANEREEERERSSGE
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18

March = B+ 1\ R

CIC trainees awarded the 2014 Outstanding
Apprentice/Trainee Awards
FERERMOUFERNBE RBER

March =B+ HhH

Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong
Painting Contractors Association and Alumni
BAETENZEE — BBEMREFASR
2X28
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20 March =A=+H 20-21 March = A=+HZ=+—H

8 Trade Sharing — Course Advisory Panel of Open Day of CIC Kowloon Bay Training Centre and
Quantity Measurement Sheung Shui Training Centre
TEI»EE —IHEEREERA BEXZeNBEEN&EB LR _EKIIK

LR E
H Trade Sharing — Repair & Maintenance in
Building Works
TENEG — ETHERENR
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Mar

22 March = A=+=H 23 March =A=+=H

8 Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme Award [ “Build a Better Hong Kong” Cocktail Reception
Presentation Ceremony 2014/2015 cum Fun Day [REEBHRAR] B
BIEX L RE) 878 52 4182014/2015
EnFEg Bl Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Bar-

Bending Contractors Association and Alumni
HMETENESG — BELEEGREXEE

108



Events Calendar 2015
2015F 8 B &%

25 March = A=+HH

Bl Trade Sharing — Course Advisory Panel and
Alumni of Metal Work
TEIZEE — cEBIENREEMEREXES

27 March =B =++tH

E Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong
Formwork Contractors Association
BEITENEE — BEEERRES

|
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27 March =B =+ +tH

Construction Industry Employers Seminar
Series — Part 6

BEERIERRY OGN
30 March = B =+H

B Construction Manpower Seminar 2015

BIEXANERNE €2015
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April to December @A Z+ = A

Bl Trial Run Inspections for Implementation of B Briefing Sessions on Senior Workers Registration
“Designated Workers for Designated Skills” Arrangement on Construction Sites (Jointly
[ETEF|KEELK Organised with HKCIEGU)

[BERTAEMZE THEE
(BEBRZEXALTEAM)
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EB A 122 A I 1% i RIEREE

PolyU licenses ted

uniform to CIC

01 April @B —H 10 April @A +H

B “PolyU Licenses Technology of Anti-heat B Won the Silver Award for the Best Digital
Stress Construction Uniform to CIC” Press Entertainment (Interactive Design) with The
Conference Cum Signing Ceremony University of Hong Kong in the 10th Hong Kong
[ 32 K % 2258 35 B AR Rl 3 4 7 Information and Communications Technology
BEEZZg | TEHENGEEZEN Awards

HEAXRERNFETEBFEEALBARRER
RHG FREFEBIRE (BEFRE)
iR 8

111




Events Calendar 2015
2015F 8 B &%

GT0Z 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

12 April MA+=H 16 April @A+ <A

B Construction Industry Sports Day cum B CIC Innovation Award 2015 Grand Launch
Charity Fun Day 2015 Ceremony
0052 EXEHGEERZRALA 015 EXEZ SRR E
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Mg
1
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I} CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNG

T Tl
consmveron KOWLOON BAY TRAINING CENTRE
EErs TU HE 7 3N AR

16 April @A+ XH 28 April WA=+ \H
Meeting with Chartered Institution of

Civil Engineering Surveyors
HERFFIATIRAEMESENH

22 April BA=+=H
E Meeting with Institution of Occupational

Safety and Health
HBREXT L RRESEE

El Trade Association Sharing — Association of
Plastering Sub-Contractors
BEITE(DEg — RAKAHS
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May 1 A

.

04 May & B M H 07 May £ BtH
[l Meeting with Hong Kong General Building [l Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Concretor
Contractors Association Contractors Association and Alumni
HESREXFAERH S BETXESEE — B ERELHSEEEESRE
X825

1 Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Plumbing
and Sanitary Ware Trade Association and Alumni
HMETENEG — BEKBRREXFGRESE

28

A

|
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09-10 May E BhRAZE+H 13 May 5 A+=H

1 Information Expo of Multiple Pathways 2015 & Meeting with Honorary TANG Ka-piu,
(Education Bureau) Legislative Council Member
[% 7T i B8 B FSHOW 2015/(# B 3) By ZgHREASEH
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GT0Z 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

27-29 May A A=-++tHZ=+hH
Construction Safety Week 2015 & # ¥ % 2 /52015

m
A
k

215
—

27 May B A=+ +tH

[ Qigong Display Competition ET Innovative Safety Award Presentation Ceremony 2015
RYT\ER R EAR L & BIE TR %L & BA K HMIE2015

Construction Safety Week Conference
BEELEZAWRSE
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28 May EA=+/\A 29 May E 8=+ h B
[ Site Visits [f1 21st Considerate Contractors Site Award
T 28 Scheme Award Presentation Ceremony

FANEARMBEFFTEEEAR
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22 miEnge rR.

i‘('\muhbm\eq
"!"‘émrL n
vy

Attended the GRAPHISOFT 2015 Asia-Pacific Key Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong
Client Conference Formwork Contractors Association
i & GRAPHISOFT 201538 A & & % HMETESIEE — BERREE

Career and Education Expo (Recruit)

EEHERHMBEBE (Recruit)

|
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BigRgE

Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Bar-
Bending Contractors Association and Alumni

BEITXENEE —BARERBENREREE

Training Schemes Briefing Session
EIFEEN S

Technical Seminar of CIC Building Information
Modelling (BIM) Standards (Phase One)
REFZSENEEGELRBRELE(E—H)
BT E
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5 i D+ N M Sy gL ihe .

LIBERAL STUDIES 2 ¥, E ‘
WRI'"NG% sairi v @ v meon e G @
COMPETITION 5 |.S Writing ( ific

2014-15%

Crucial English Skills to
Develop a Critcal Mind

% CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY RESOURCE CENTRE

EEEEMPO

==wm L0 Pan Cocktail Recepti

AR 35 5 o WAL B

=a S =
w8 25 -

[

2
= &

Jul A

11 July tB+—H 16 July £ A+7<H
Bl Liberal Studies Writing Competition 2014-15 Bl Meeting with Students from School of Architecture
Award Presentation Ceremony and Civil Engineering of Tsinghua University (Sino
[2014-153 # R X 5 {E LL B | FR 82 S8 Groupfsilinteins) i ) N
HBERNBFABE LT ARTRERELE (EH
EEEEL) LA

27 July £t A=+ tH

B CIC Lo Pan Cocktail Reception
BEXZSBENLMERLES

|
120



Events Calendar 2015 ol
201555 8 B 3% g

RSN L7564
NN e grairmirpr 2
\ -i}a\\“_“\‘“ﬁ!'!ﬁ’;fWV
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X
B,

28 July t B=+N\H 30 July £t B=+H
B Young Lo Pan Award Prize Presentation Ceremony [ Closing Ceremony of “Build Your Life Mentorship
2015 EF B B RpEmmme Programme 2014-15"

[2014-15F B2 E AL AT 2B EE
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Aug /\A

11 - 16 August \A+—HZE+<H

B - \WorldSkills Sao Paulo 2015
2015 R EEfRZE [t A K g K& |
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11 - 16 August N\A+—HZ+XH

BB WorldSkills Sdo Paulo 2015
2015 FHEE (R 78 [t R BE R &
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14, 17 & 18 August \A+HMAB - +tHK 12 August \A+=H

TAR B Build a Better Hong Kong and Construction

Briefing Sessions on "“On-Site Trial Scheme of Charity Fund Cheque Presentation Ceremony cum
Reasonable Measures” (Round 2) Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Carnival
[EREREIHARTEIEF _HKETS [(REEBHRARINEEXRAREESCENXE

BREABROMERTERLRERRFE
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CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNcy,
BiExge

18 August \ B+ /\H 21 & 31 August \A=+—HEK=+—8H

B Meeting with Research Team from Authority of B Full-time Course Orientation Day 2015
Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service 2015:R 12 M3 B
Industry Cooperation Zone
BERINTRAIERBRARBESERERERBH
RTEREHE
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B ke MENTER

KE ARAH KESEJAHTERAAN RAKYAT

— KEMENTERIAN KERJA RAYA
S MALAYSIA
MINISTRY OF WORKS MALAYSIA

\ug \H

20-25 August N\A=-+HZ=+EH

Bl -El CIC Innovation Tour
BEEZRCETRIRE
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RA0FTHGR
BT T

Chun Wo.
caEc,
cas L -
o SR « 5 HEsE
o s
ca0a  Zxi — = - 3
RBULT. | ChunWo s =
2 ;réom - i | — =
o : : i o i s
e 12 ) C e S G WA agean
- > I X %ans C&ECo.
saxTa: &
%MIA'

HEER

d commitment

ZHE
AFEEIE -
= suuumufnencrmre ith trust an

Sep LA

01 September jLH—H September to November . B Z+—A

Bl ACMTS Launching Ceremony Bl On-site Trial Scheme of Reasonable Measures
ERE TEEIIE 2 EE (Round 2)

F_WmeBEE I AR
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02 - 16 September L A= HZ+/<H
Hong Kong Green Building Week 2015 & & & @ E £ #2015

i

02 September L A =H 12 September L A +=H
Hong Kong Green Building Week 2015 B Hong Kong Green Building Week 2015
Launching Ceremony Mini LegCo & Youth Forum
BEZEEER2015R S BB EBREER2015
[EFiREmE]

05 September I B HH

B Hong Kong Green Building Week 2015 Green
Building Ideas Pitching Event

BB ERZEA2015
(4578 BRI RHFITRIREARE
|
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2015

Sep LA

10 September L A+ H

A - B IPBA-CIC Construction Conference 2015
20154FIPBA-CICZE %M€
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11 September L A+ —H 18 September L AZ+/\H

B Construction Industry Employers Seminar Bl Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong & Kowloon
Series — Part 7 Scaffolders General Merchants Association
BEXEIBEERY (L) AETEIES —TEMERS

18 September L B +/\H 23 September L A =+=H

M Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong Painting Job Fair @ Yau Mai Tai (The Salvation Army)
Contractors Association and Alumni BEF T B @i (Rt =)

BETENFE — BAHRERNEREXER
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BEETARERSSE
2015

Sep LA

26 September 71 A =+ 7<H 29 September L A=+ A

EB CIC Scholarships for Family Members of Registered [ Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong Construction
Construction Workers 2015 Award Presentation Industry to Celebrate the 66th Anniversary of the
Ceremony PRC
015FREXRSAMBEXTTIARBREZER BERRERBENPEA R HE K Z66/E F B E
528 =28

132



=

AN e
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~ Industry’s Future Roadma
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30 September LB =+H

E-B CIC Forum 2015: “Forum on the Construction Industry’s Future Roadmap”

Events Calendar 2015
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BEXEEWE2015 [REERKERE®RE]
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Events Calendar 2015
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WORLDGBC CONGRESS 2015 "
HION G KON G Thinki

Pathway to Futy

evel
o rs: s Fully Supported by:
s, r &
BEXRE HK e :
A JEA i
5 S ASS - - - EF.B SWIRLPR ES  ARUP
DI SWIRE PROpZ®® L~ - < S i =
y $ i - e e
i ‘ / \ e (=5
l B . -
|
‘ 8
| S ‘
!":‘“ CBRE

ms e

WORLDGBC CONGRESS 2015
HONG KONG

27 - 31 October TBE=++tHZ=1+—H

El = WorldGBC Congress 2015 Hong Kong
01 FEHRGEREEZEGRIRAE
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CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL

EN =]

08 November +— A\ H 09 November +— A 1 H T
_l_

Bl Chinachem Walkathon 2015 El Trade Association Sharing — Hong Kong z
ZE172015 Formwork Contractors Association -

HETXENEFE — BBRRES
B Walk for Nature 2015
& E AN B 42015
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10 November +— A +AH

B B dC Graduation Ceremony 2015
WIFEREXZZEFHE

Nov +—H
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18 November +— A+ /\ H 26 November +—H =+ 7xH

Appointment Ceremony for Construction B CIC Technical Seminar cum Carbon Labelling
Industry Ambassador Scheme Acknowledgement Reception
BEXEFNREZEER BEXRSRITH SERERTEIXG 2

20 November +—H=+8H

B Trade Sharing — Course Advisory Panel of
Quantity Measurement
TESZE — INEEREERAE
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Dec +=A
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01 December +=H —H

El Trade Sharing — Course Advisory Panel of
Plumbing and Pipe Fitting
TENESG — KERAMRIEEHEA

04 December +=H M H

2 Construction Industry Employers Seminar
Series — Part 8

BREFRIBBERI

10 December += A+ H

El Job fair for trainees

SEHES

23 December T = A=+ =H

@ Opening Ceremony of Modern Training Site — CIC
Tai Po Training Ground
[EIRFRSFRBEHRE — BEZXZGRIFIR

%
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NOVATION AWHA
ND""H"I’IDN CERS

. BN BE W 85 BN .

15 December + = A+ &HB 18 December + = A +/\H

B - B2 CIC Innovation Award 2015 Presentation [l Construction Workers Registration System
Ceremony Launching Ceremony and Briefing Session
201558 5 & 3 & A 57 4978 48 38 BEXTAEMEGHAEAREGNT S

18 December +=— B+ /\ H Throughout the year &

[l  Briefing Sessions on "Designated Workers for

[l Launching Ceremony of the “Build Your Life ; : ,
Designated Skills” of Construction Workers

Mentorship Programme 2015-16"

, s . Registration Ordinance
2015-16F E & G 2
( g eyt Sk (BEXTAFMEINZIZSEIEN S

|
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Independent

Auditor’s Report
78 37 A% BRI 3

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Construction
Industry Council

(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction Industry
(the
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December

Council “Council”) set out on pages 142 to 175, which
2015, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in fund and
reserves and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The Council’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
misstatement,

financial statements that are free from material

whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

140
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Y8 37 A% BB

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 December 2015 and of
the Council’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 June 2016
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Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015
BRFFTER BE2015512A8318LEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA VS ¥ 51)
Income A
Levy income BRI A 3 $1,029,487,674 $783,325,985
Course fee and related income RIZWE KA A 21,755,343 22,737,078
Registration fee income RSN 4 9,318,698 9,940,360
Trade testing income T 2RI A 7,895,922 8,449,130
Investment and interest income TERF B WA 5 16,298,962 14,818,003
Other income H AUz A 6 63,816,646 96,432,159
$1,148,573,245 $935,702,715

Less: L
Expenditure X
Staff costs EEEBHA 7 $306,791,742 $294,275,995
Training expenses FlsRE R 175,322,750 184,578,093
Workshop sundries THMES N 25,569,383 25,759,983
General and administrative expenses —RITEE R 8 117,944,114 99,846,901
Repair and maintenance expenses HIEREER 14,015,684 12,482,398
Advertising and publicity expenses BEEEERA 37,762,892 31,833,642
Depreciation e 9 46,952,825 39,555,450
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - B RE

plant and equipment 2 518 1,421,438 382,125
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts = iR % # # [a] 13(@a) — (6,286)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERENRE

investments &5 18 5,076,567 2,391,441

$730,857,395 $691,099,742

Surplus for the year REEEG $417,715,850 $244,602,973

The notes on pages 149 to 175 form part of these financial £8149Z1758 &) [ff 5 & AN Bf % e 3k 2 — =B
statements. 7 e
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015
BERFEREMEERER BE2005F12A31BEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A ¥ E)

Note M &+ m 2014
Surplus for the year REEEG $417,715,850 $244,602,973
Other comprehensive income AFEEHM 2 ERKE

for the year
Items that may be reclassified to profit or A] 748 /5875 2 HH :

loss:
Available-for-sale investments: AEEERE 2(f)
— Net decrease in fair value — RFEEZFRE $(3,365,544) $(3,623,290)
— Impairment loss transferred to profit or — BEZ E W EE

loss B RE B 1R 5,076,567 2,391,441

$1,711,023 $(1,231,849)

Total comprehensive income I EE A2 E K&

for the year $419,426,873 $243,371,124

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other & B & it H th 2 [E Y 28 48 A & 9 D17 21 75
comprehensive income. TE o

The notes on pages 149 to 175 form part of these financial £8149F 1758 M) [l # B AN Bf 75 5k 2 — =B
statements. e
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Financial Statements
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Statement of financial position at 31 December 2015
BHMRRHER 201512 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ¥ 5)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M e REE 9 $347,206,968 $329,740,505
Prepayments SCANE-9:¢ 14 48,661,816 6,265,508
Held-to-maturity investments REIHBZRKRE 10 58,891,921 59,510,391
Available-for-sale investments AHEEEZRE 11 35,925,253 39,290,797
$490,685,958 $434,807,201
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EE 17 12 $457,664 $964,056
Levy receivables JE W2 B K 13 67,571,703 54,009,003
Deposits, prepayments and other FHEEe  BENEAK
receivables H it fE U IR T8 14 37,597,664 62,371,645
Cash and deposits at banks RITHE RER 15 1,357,221,499 978,292,501
Cash on hand FFR2 52,000 124,400
$1,462,900,530  $1,095,761,605
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable and accruals EIERBERETE A 16 $128,361,234 $124,552,602
Deferred income on registration fee R -SRI PN 17 6,639,263 8,165,257
$135,000,497 $132,717,859
Net current assets RBEEFH $1,327,900,033 $963,043,746
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLRBERS $1,818,585,991  $1,397,850,947
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M &

Note Fff m 2014
Non-current liability FREBEE
Deferred income on registration fee o i & IR A U A 17 7,208,157 5,899,986
Net assets EEFE $1,811,377,834  $1,391,950,961
Represented by: R
Accumulated fund Z2RES $1,419,833,761 $1,002,117,911
General reserve LR 389,353,310 389,353,310
Investment revaluation reserve BEEMLHE 2,190,763 479,740
Total fund and reserves ESR#EERARE $1,811,377,834  $1,391,950,961

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Members of Construction Industry Council on 17 June 2016 and
were signed on their behalf by:

Sr CHAN Ka-kui, 88s, /P
Chairman

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred
Member, Committee on
Administration and Finance

The notes on pages 149 to 175 form part of these financial
statements.
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B 75 %

Statement of changes in fund and reserves for the year ended 31 December 2015
ESRBEESEHR BE2005F2AALEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB )
Investment
Accumulated General revaluation
fund reserve reserve Total
REES LERE RESHRR wmeE
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(7)) (7 (b))
Balance at 1 January 2014 2014181 2 &84 $757,514,938  $389,353,310 $1,711,589  $1,148,579,837
Changes in fund and reserves 2014%EZE £ R #E
for 2014: 25
Surplus for the year KEE B $244,602,973 $— $—  $244,602,973
Other comprehensive income H 2wk = — (1,231,849) (1,231,849)
Total comprehensive income for 7R [Z 48 2 E W &5
L $244,602973 8 30.231.849)  §243.371.124
Balance at 31 December 2014 42014128318 K&
and 1 January 2015 2015128318 2 &8  $1,002,117,911  $389,353,310 $479,740  $1,391,950,961
Changes in fund and reserves 20156 E 2B+ R f#
for 2015: 25
Surplus for the year NEE B $417,715,850 $— $—  $417,715,850
Other comprehensive income b 2 T Y2 2 — — 1,711,023 1,711,023
Total comprehensive income for 74 [Z 48 2 E W &5
the year $417,715,850 $— $1,711,023 $419,426,873
Balance at 31 December 2015 #2015F12H31H 2 &8 $1,419,833,761 $389,353,310 $2,190,763 $1,811,377,834

Notes:

(a)

The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer
of net assets from Construction Industry Training Authority on 1
January 2008 and Construction Workers Registration Authority on 1
January 2013. The general reserve was created for employing the
reserve in the operations of the Council or by investing the reserve in
such manner as the Members think fit. The Members may apply the
general reserve for any other special purpose.

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2(f).

The notes on pages 149 to 175 form part of these financial
statements.

(b)

BB 2 PSR R A2 85Ok B 2 5 R Al AR
[R2008F1HIE R ZERTAGZMERRF
0B3FIAIENEEREERZTEHE - RULE
BRHEBELSEAZSEFENEENATE
FERXUKRERBEENER TN - B
SREEELHIKRE - KA 3 E A E M55l
R EREELBES -

REBHHRBREES THEEZRERE
BHMERBLERANATFEEEEFER
RIE & S EEM E20) AR ©

FIORI1TSENN B A Sk 2 — 2
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2015
HERER BE2055128318ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A ®E51)
Operating activities EEED
Surplus for the year KEE B $417,715,850 $244,602,973
Adjustments for: )
Reversal of allowance for doubtful R MR 2E 1 % B
debts — (6,286)
Depreciation e 46,952,825 39,555,450
Investment and interest income & RF B WA (16,298,962) (14,818,003)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ERENRIE
investments & 18 5,076,567 2,391,441
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HE¥ ¥ - #ER
equipment HfE 2z E1E 1,421,438 382,125
Operating cash inflow before KRB EESRFHE
changes in working capital ERERE $454,867,718 $272,107,700
Decrease in inventories B 17 R 506,392 448,978
Increase in levy receivables JE U B kL N (13,562,700) (11,217,454)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e  BENERRHEAM
prepayments and other receivables & W5 MR TE R
(12 n) 26,748,551 (10,417,876)
Increase in accounts payables and ERRERESER
accruals 3% A0 3,808,632 45,280,688
Decrease in deferred income i FE U8 AR (217,823) (1,436,630)
Net cash generated from operating HREZEZTH2HE
activities b= $472,150,770 $294,765,406

147

==
SEEDH

EET

-3



GTOg 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

Financial Statements

B 75 %

Investing activities REER

Increase in bank deposits with original &% & 28 = {& A | £

maturity over three months 2 RITFER $(598,919,814) $(64,924,008)
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity EEE#HZEZHAKER

investments (NS — (29,546,265)
Interest received W B &) A B 13,044,787 11,729,416
Dividend received from available-for-sale U EX 7] fit H & & & 2

investments f% B 1,898,075 1,832,903
Payment for purchase of property, plant BEAYE - HE MR E

and equipment RN (108,237,034) (77,578,131)

Net cash used in investing activities FARREZFBZEHE
F $(692,213,986)  $(158,486,085)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERZFHEELIEHEH

cash equivalents FOR) B $(220,063,216) $136,279,321
Cash and cash equivalents at 1812 R RERE

1 January RELEH 608,358,033 472,078,712
Cash and cash equivalents at 12B31AZR & RER

31 December HELEH $388,294,817 $608,358,033

Analysis of the balances of cash and & RERRLIER

cash equivalents EEzDMW
Cash and deposits at banks RITIRE MR 15 $1,357,221,499 $978,292,501
Cash on hand FEEHES 52,000 124,400

$1,357,273,499 $978,416,901

Less: Bank deposits with original maturity & : /R #231& A 2| Hi 2
over three months RITEXR 15 (968,978,682) (370,058,868)

$388,294,817 $608,358,033

The notes on pages 149 to 175 form part of these financial Z5149F 1758 MM &t |8 A B 15 sk &k 2 — &0
statements. (AN
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Notes to the

inancial statements
Bf 7S s R B 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A B ¥ ET)

1 General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was established as
a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under the
Construction Industry Council Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). The
Council is a non-profit making organisation and acts as an industry
co-ordinating body. Its principal functions are to forge consensus on
long-term strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and
aspirations to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the

communication channel for the Government to solicit advice on all

Government “Government”), as well as provide a
construction-related matters. In order to propagate improvements
across the entire industry, the Council is empowered to formulate
codes of conduct, administer registration and rating schemes, steer
forward research and manpower development, provide and co-
ordinate training courses, facilitate adoption of construction
standards, promote good practices and compile performance
indicators and make recommendations with respect to the rate of

the levy.

Construction Workers Registration Authority (the "Authority”) was
established as a statutory body on 18 September 2004 in Hong
Kong under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance. The
Authority was a non-profit making organisation in Hong Kong. Its
principal functions were to be responsible for the administration of
the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance and the supervision
of the registration of construction workers; set the qualification
requirements for registration or renewal of registration; make
recommendations with respect to the rate of levy; and perform such
other functions as were imposed on it under the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance or any other enactment. On 1
January 2013, the Authority was amalgamated with the Council and
the Authority was dissolved since then. All rights, assets, liabilities
and obligations of the Authority were vested in the Council and the
principal functions of the Authority are carried out by the Council
with effective from 1 January 2013.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at

15/F, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

149

1 HEEE

2EXZEe(FRQ)ERB(REXZER
IR HI)) 12007F2 A1 B EE B K L 8E
ERE - AZER—FEENEE  RIER
EROBERE HIZRERIRERE
HEERRNLE  BEAFIITRERF (K
IEBEXANTELHA UREHEE
MBBRE  ERNRSHEREXERE
HHEAERER REFHEMEEXRTEH K

O AZERETERAGTRTTR  BE
EREMEFRE  BEERERADE
B RELSAEHINRE - REXRRANE

BEERE  HERIFETAALTERR
BE - ARBBRRIRHES -

BEEXETIAZMEER(BER) ERE(E
EET AEMIEH)R200459818BEE B
M HETEWTE - EERARE—FTIELEF
g c HFXEBECAEAM(EEETA
ARG THR IEMEEREFT AT
i BaEMERELERIEH  REERE
REERE  RATH(EEET AEMIEH)
ok B Ath A I Z ka9 B gk o /£2013F1H18 -
EEREBHEAZESH BEERINEDHES

M20135F1FNEE - EEBHER - EE
BERECEGREZT MEERMNEIER

4| Py . =
BN ZHhHEZ AR -

REENAMPERMIU BT R EFELT
BI3BRBAES AEISE -



ST0Z 10day Tenuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

(a)

(b)

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"),
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong

which collective term includes all applicable
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally

issued by the Hong Kong

accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Council is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
Note 2(c)
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting

accounting period of the Council. provides
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Council for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale investments are
stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting policy

set out in note 2(f).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Council.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

(a)

(b)

TEEHEE
RER 2R

AU BHBRRBRBEAEERNC(EEMB

SRR WRBeERBERER
MCE BB REER) BB LGS
EAGEMANCE ARG ERDRRE -
ARBE-—RBANGHRAIMESR -
ARG RANEIESTREMET
HaTE e

EEGHMMARE RN ETRESR
HEtHAEREMKAHRERRAS
MEMERETNKEBRBRSE
A) - MaE2Qd BB B RERMR
RFSRELATEHMENREA
MBEMERN S A RRLE -

RV BHRRNEE

BRTRABEAAIHLERENERTA
2 A0FE FE2(F) AT 51 H Y & BUR R R
NERFEEARN  SEIBHEEK
RN EREERE LKA °

AP HEBKRPAAOBES/ETTFE - 75

ERZENMEER -

ZRECE BB HREER) RS
BE ZEFEFLTEBRRERER
BREE  Aff WMARIHNERRK
BZHE HEALRBRR -BBALE
RERBZREERELRRNEEHM
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Council:

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Council’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Council
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Consolidation

No consolidated financial statements are prepared as the
Council’s interest in the results and net assets of its subsidiary
is immaterial.

Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Council. The Council
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Council has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Council and other parties) are

considered.
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(f)

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

The Council provides funding support to its subsidiary, Zero
Carbon Building (formerly known as Zero Carbon Building
Limited), and the amount is charged to profit or loss when
incurred.

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at

fair value, which is their transaction prices unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Other investments in securities, being those held not for
trading purpose, are classified as available-for-sale securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
Dividend
equity securities and interest income from debt securities

the investment revaluation reserve. income from
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in note
2(p)(vi) and 2(p)(vii), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt

securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
2(h)(D)),

reclassified to profit or loss.

the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Council commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and losses

(see note 2(h(ii)).

impairment

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production

overheads.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value,

if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

- Building and premises 25 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Computer equipment 3-5 years
- Renovation and building facilities 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 10 years

= Facilities, tools, machinery and workshop equipment 5 years

Other equipment 10 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(h)

(0

Impairment of assets

other receivables

interest or principal payments;

Notes to the financial statements

Bt 75 S 2% BT 5E
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

(h)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and 10)

Investments in debt and equity securities and receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Council about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
significant changes in the technological, market, economic

or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of levy receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Council is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against levy
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit

or loss.
Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

= Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is determined on the first-in first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of operation less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for debts

(see note 2(h(i)).

impairment of doubtful

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits
Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary

benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or

amount when the Council has a legal or constructive

obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Council are classified as operating leases.

Where the Council has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Recognition of income
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration

Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the income and

received or receivable.

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and is
recognised when the assessment of the value of
construction operations by the Council are complete.

(i)  Course fee and related income are recognised over the
period of training.

(iii)  Trade testing income is recognised upon completion of
the testing.

(iv)  Registration fee income is recognised on a time proportion
basis. Unearned registration fee income is treated as
deferred income on registration fee.

(v)  Registration service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(vi)  Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Council’s right to receive payment is established.

(vii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(viii)

Reimbursement of trainees’ allowances is recognised upon
the payment of trainees’ allowances by the Council.

160

(p)

THOEFES 2 A2 EIE D - miF
MENEHESRHRNSFH - AF
BB REE -

Wy 55 B SR

YA R DA B U B 3k AT Us ER R B e R
BEFTE o &5 F &5 A 7l e [ &
g - WA R CGEE )R] ) B
o RIRASER AN ERERNT

(i) BRI EREERARK
B REZGTAMNGERETRE
BERKRER -

(i) RIZWE RAEREKARKEIAR
R -

(i) T 28 & W A 52 OB Bl R

72

(iv) FEfHE WA R E P AR
R RRFNEMEBEKRA R
REMBRETERARRE -

v EMREEREREEBRSEE
HER ©

vy BREMSZBRBBARHEELZ
B U ELA 3R 2 1 I By TR o

(vi) B A R AR E R A
R o

BERUBERCEZGWIEER
2 REAT RB RERR

(viii)



Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

(q) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Council if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Council;

(i)  has significant influence over the Council; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Council.

(b)  An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(iii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Council.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements

WIS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA #& 5H)
3  Levy income 3 #BRWEA
Private sector A& TFR $512,875,880 $388,329,505
Public sector NETTE 369,252,958 270,488,820
Others (note) Hh TR (GGE) 146,821,570 124,147,072
Penalty on overdue levy #8084 1 Bk 2 K 537,266 360,588

$1,029,487,674 $783,325,985

Note: Others include levy income on construction operations relating to
the port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express
Rail Link, South Island Line, Penny’'s Bay Railway, Kwun Tong Line

Extension, West Island Line and Shatin Central Line.

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the rate of 0.5%
on the value of all construction operations undertaken or carried out
in Hong Kong, for which the tender has been submitted on or after
20 August 2012, and with a total value exceeding $1,000,000.
Tender for construction operations submitted before 20 August 2012
and before 10 January 2000 were subject to old levy rates of 0.4%
and 0.25%, respectively.

Additionally, in accordance with the provisions of section 23 of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance, a levy is imposed at
the rate of 0.03% on the value of all construction operations
undertaken or carried out in Hong Kong, for which the tender has
been submitted or a construction contract has been entered or the
construction operations have begun on or after 24 February 2005
and with a total value exceeding $1,000,000.
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

4  Registration fee income

Registration fee income represents registration fees received and
receivable from construction workers applying for registration which
normally has a validity period of 36 months in accordance with the
Construction Workers Registration (Fees) Regulation (CAP 583(B)).
Registration fee income relating to future periods are treated as
deferred income on registration fee (note 17).

4 FMEBEVRA

At EAKRARKEBEMORZETAE K
REWHEMER - EMfMA Rz R(GEE
ETAEM(ER) RHD(ES8IB)E) - — K
R36MAA - BEERKNEMERA 8RA
A B AR AT U A B B (B RE17) e

5 Investment and interest income 5 RERMEWA

Interest on held-to-maturity debt securities BERIHBHHCEBESNE $2,027,057 $1,396,711

Interest on bank deposits RITTFERZA B 12,373,806 11,588,374

Other interest income E b F) B U A 24 15

Dividend from available-for-sale investments AHEEREZKRE 1,898,075 1,832,903
$16,298,962 $14,818,003

6 Other income 6 HwA

Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance BEEANEE $58,235,260 $91,387,080

Other miscellaneous income H fb 3 TE WA 5,581,386 5,045,079
$63,816,646 $96,432,159

Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance represents the receivable from
the Government in respect of the allowances paid by the Council to
the trainees for several approved training schemes.

7 Staff costs

2B R IRE SN BUF U R U IE - A
MEZRSEZHEZERIFITAXNNE
BER -

Contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plan
Salaries, wages and other benefits

HETEREAMEF

FURE 1 BUR A FT 8 9 5K

7 EEEBH
$19,585,249 $19,311,517
287,206,493 274,964,478

$306,791,742 $294,275,995
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Notes to the financial statements

=+ =3
B 75 S 2% B 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A EEE)
.. . .
8 General and administrative expenses 8 —-RITHBEAR
General and administrative expenses included: —RITHERBRE:
Operating lease charges: minimum lease EEHERE - REHEE
payments <R 58 $5,503,016 $5,199,294
Auditors’ remuneration =% &R B & 327,700 322,500
Cost of inventories (note 12) &5 77 A A (Bt 512) 3,233,917 1,540,328
9  Property, plant and equipment 9 WE -BB|ERZE
Facilities, tools,
Renovation machinery and
Building and Motor Computer and building Furniture workshop Other
premises vehicles equipment facilities and fixtures equipment equipment Total
£EBR BER R®E-IE-
BEIRET "E BHRE EFRIE EEHE BHRISBRE HtbR aE
(Note)
(B )
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 #2014%1718 $222,828,825  $1,151,806  $21,907,031  $82,502,421  $1,926,931 $32,395,005  $6,269,063 $368,981,082
Additions 15 13,941,788 — 6,143,828 36,883,509 3,518,202 8,430,581 2,394,715 71,312,623
Disposals HE = = (346,997)  (6,178,143) (306,498) (140,679) (360,863)  (7,333,180)
At 31 December 2014 742014412 A31H $236,770,613  $1,151,806  $27,703,862 $113,207,787  $5,138,635 $40,684,907  $8,302,915 $432,960,525
At 1 January 2015 R201551 818 $236,770,613  $1,151,806  $27,703,862 $113,207,787  $5,138,635 $40,684,907  $8,302,915 $432,960,525
Additions R 9,666,937 — 4988546 31,119,665 987,780 14,598,624 4,479,174 65,840,726
Disposals HE — — —  (3,178,095) (3,800) (832,538) (548,792)  (4,563,225)
At 31 December 2015 R2015412 4318 $246,437,550  $1,151,806  $32,692,408 $141,149,357  $6,122,615 $54,450,993  $12,233,297 $494,238,026
Accumulated depreciation: R E:
At 1 January 2014 7201441818 $9,360,019 $484,110  $10,404,668  $30,070,228 $563,407 $17,843,266  $1,889,927  $70,615,625
Charge for the year A 1R B 9,316,057 177,400 3,820,029 18,385,013 416,565 6,694,297 746,089 39,555,450
Written back on disposals % 2 B = = (346,997)  (6,064,744) (187,325) (125,559) (226,430)  (6,951,055)
At 31 December 2014 742014412 A31H $18,676,076 $661,510  $13,877,700  $42,390,497 $792,647 $24,412,004  $2,409,586 $103,220,020
At 1 January 2015 #201551 818 $18,676,076 $661,510  $13,877,700  $42,390,497 $792,647 $24,412,004  $2,409,586 $103,220,020
Charge for the year AEE R E 9,804,397 177,400 4,570,784 23,407,251 530,038 7,648,356 814,599 46,952,825
Written back on disposals & & 2 BB = = = (2,430,200) (1,868) (466,367) (243,352) (3,141,787)
At 31 December 2015 742015412 318 $28,480,473 $838,910  §18,448,484  $63,367,548  $1,320,817 $31,593,993  $2,980,833  $147,031,058
Net book value: IREEE:
At 31 December 2015 2015412 4318 $217,957,077 $312,896  $14,243,924  $77,781,809  $4,801,798 $22,857,000  $9,252,464 $347,206,968
At 31 December 2014 2014412 4318 $218,094,537 $490,296  $13,826,162  $70,817,290  $4,345,988 $16,272,903  $5,893,329 $329,740,505

Note: As at 31 December 2015, included in building and premises was an [z : & E20154612A318 ' ELEYREFES

amount of $246,437,545 (2014: $236,770,608) which represented = Bk K M B AKX AN - & B8 & $246,437,545
the cost of Zero Carbon Building (ZCB). (20144 : $236,770,608) °

____________________________________________________________________________________________|
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

10 Held-to-maturity investments

10 FEIHEZRE

Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong BB LEMHEBREE $30,014,951 $30,084,439

Listed debt instruments on the Stock Exchange f£& B4 2 Z T EH A
of Hong Kong BEBRE 28,876,970 29,425,952
$58,891,921 $59,510,391

The held-to-maturity investments are neither past due nor impaired.

11 Available-for-sale investments

REINMAZRESL EBHKIELBEE -

11 THHEEZRE

Equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange HE& BB AR ZE EH 2

of Hong Kong, at market value Bzt E S (AmEE) $35,925,253 $39,290,797
Fair value of individually impaired equity & B 1 1 Rk B A R 2 1 78 5

securities ZRFEE $25,970,207 $31,046,774

As at 31 December 2015, the Council’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the basis
of a material decline in their fair value below cost which indicated
that the cost of the Council’s investment in them might not be
recovered. Impairment losses on these investments were recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(h(i).

12 Inventories

Inventories in the statement of financial position represent finished
goods.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expenditure and included in the statement of profit or loss is as
follows:

B Z=2015F12H318 e HEERs
MBEHFCBURTHEAFEEDKNEEE
EEAKRAE BREASHNABREK ALK
BRI B 2 ERBET - EHRE - BEERERNR
BEEE  BREME20OMIIEE - RB&=
EITHER o

12 E=E
BB RRN BRI ESTSEK G -

B FEERASXHLFFABERFEAN
DT

2014

EHERFMIREE

Carrying amount of inventories sold

$3,233,917 $1,540,328
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Notes to the financial statements

B i R R M 5T
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA S ¥ 51)
13 Levy receivables 13 FEWHEXR
Levy receivables & UK B 3R $69,985,491 $56,746,692
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts T R R E (2,413,788) (2,737,689)
$67,571,703 $54,009,003

All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the
contractors is 28 days after the date of the notice of assessment.
Further details on the Council’s credit policy are set out in note
19(a).

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period of
28 days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid
amount. If the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any
penalty imposed remains unpaid within three months after the expiry
of the specified period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid
amount will be imposed on the outstanding balance. The Council
would provide fully for all long outstanding receivables, having
considered, inter alia, the likelihood of recoverability based on
historical experience.

Included in the Council’s levy receivables balance are debtors with a
carrying amount of $731,653 (2014: $994,987) which were past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Council had not
provided for any doubtful debts as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable.
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

(@) Impairment of levy receivables

Impairment losses on levy receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Council is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off

against levy receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

() BWERZRE

WK Z REBEENEGKRFPRLE - K
FRemERESEREMTEN  MeE
35 B FE W B SR AL #H R (B &5 1B (R BT 5 2(h)
@) e

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year FERARIKREGN LSBT :

is as follows:

At 1 January W1 A1 $2,737,689 $2,886,862
Reversal of impairment R B (3] — (6,286)
Uncollectible amounts written off EHARBE W B & 58 (323,901) (142,887)
At 31 December W12 HA31H $2,413,788 $2,737,689

At 31 December 2015, the Council’s levy receivables of $2,413,788
(2014: $2,737,689) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to contractors that were
either under liquidation or in financial difficulties and the Council
assessed that the full amount of the receivables to be irrecoverable.

In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the Council
collectively considered any change in the credit quality of the levy
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
contractor base being large and unrelated.

167

M20155F12A31H - & & & B I & &
$2,413,788 (20144 : $2,737,689) E & Bl & &
TEHLDRE o @RI E ERRIE LS R IEETTE
BRI RENEER  EPHST G
#% 7~ AT Y [0 FE UL iR TE MO 4R B o
FEEHERKBARETWRER  SEBE
BHEVATEEERS AR ERE
FMEREZELEE - BN ERERNEE
HEREABETHE HBEENEARRE
IR -

==
BEETHE

BT

-3



GTOg 1Joday 1enuuy

TIONNOI AYLSNANI NOILINYLSNOD

Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

(b) Levy receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of levy receivables that are neither individually

nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

(b) RAEHREEZEWERK

KB B R E LR A B IR AE K FE U FUIR B
DT

Current BN EA $66,840,050 $53,014,016
Less than one month past due #8021 1E A $300,341 $859,199
One to three months past due # B2 31E A 59,513 20,550
Over three months past due %0 5 iR 8 31E A 371,799 115,238
$731,653 $994,987

$67,571,703 $54,009,003

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide

range of contractors for whom there was no recent history of

default.

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

AEBPIRENBUIRE  FREREL
BT R SRR SR GRS o

14 JBEES BANEAREMER
& 18

Deposits and prepayments BEHEZERBENER $54,335,338 $12,057,514

Other receivables H {th fE U IR T8

— Interest receivables — IS 5,210,309 3,235,739

— Receivable from the Government — KRBT A U IR IR 21,753,864 49,862,779

— Others — Hfth 4,959,969 3,481,121
$86,259,480 $68,637,153

Represented by: R *x:

Current portion B & $37,597,664 $62,371,645

Non-current portion ERENEL 1D 48,661,816 6,265,508
$86,259,480 $68,637,153
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At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, the balances under

non-current portion represented progress payments for the
improvement works carried out on certain training centres of the

Council which were in progress at the end of the reporting period.

The amount of the Council’s deposits expected to be recovered after
more than one year is $3,332,407 (2014: $2,978,555). All of the
other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenditure within one year. All other
receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

15 Cash and deposits at banks

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demand deposits
held by the Council.

M2014F12 A318 %2015412 8318 © 3E i
FEBRRERZ R LIRPOLONS TIRENE
BRI RREHREMNEEITR -

FEHKEREE —FRBENZSREER
$3,332,407 (20144 : $2,978,555) ° AT A E 1t
Be  BNER UREMEKRIKIE - 785
R —FARAKE S EERASZLIER © I
AN+ H fh FE IR TE 35 N0 A 28 B sk (B o

15 RITBHEERERK

ZENRTHEEAERERRSNERT

o
NI

2014

Deposits with banks R 1717 3K

— with original maturity over three months

— RREHZN3MEA

$968,978,682 $370,058,868

— with original maturity less than three months — /2% & 8 D 1A 31& B 370,000,000 595,000,000
Cash at bank RITHE 18,242,817 13,233,633
$1,357,221,499 $978,292,501

16 Accounts payable and accruals

All of the accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

17 Deferred income on registration fee

Deferred income on registration fee represents the unearned portion
which was not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

18 Taxation

Pursuant to section 28 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the Council is exempted from taxation under the

Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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Exposure to credit,
normal course of the Council’s operation.

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the

The Council is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity

securities. The Council’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Council to manage

these risks are described below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to levy
receivables and other receivables.

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of the
outstanding balances at the end of each reporting period to
losses are made for

ensure that adequate impairment

irrecoverable amounts. Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Council’s exposure to credit risk arising from

levy receivables are set out in note 13.
Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Council’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
risk by

continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

requirements. The Council managed liquidity

Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interests bearing financial
assets. Interests bearing financial assets are mainly cash and
deposits at banks which are all short term in nature.
Therefore, any future variations in interest rates will not have a

significant impact on the results of the Council.
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
investments (see note 11). All of these investments are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2015,
(decrease) of 1% (2014: 1%) in the relevant stock market index

it is estimated that an increase/
(for listed investments), with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Council’'s investment

revaluation reserve by $359,253 (2014: $392,908).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Council’s investment revaluation reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Council which expose the Council to equity price risk at the
end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Council’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index, that none of the Council’s available-for-
sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of
the decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2014.
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Fair value measurement
Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into which
fair value is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair values measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fall to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.

Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data

are not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair values measured using significant
unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the only financial instruments
of the Council carried at fair value were available-for-sale
equity securities of $35,925,253 (2014: $39,290,797) listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 11). These
instruments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
their fair value measurements fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Council’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

172

(e)

(i)

AT EEHE
KAFEEHEZ2HIA
AT EER)

(BREMBHREEANEI3R : 2 FEE
AERAFEEANE H»R=ZER
e -EBEEATFEBENIAE 82Z
BENTRERE2HAERARGE
RfTMEEMT :

— FIRFRUBIREBIBE R E
NFEE DATEHREESX
BEAEMAEZEARERMSHAR
RBAELMERGE

—  F2RBUAE2RBIE K ER
FEE  BAFEEIRNA R H
BRE  BETUEATATRE
BAREE - TR BURAIREE
™ 5 A 15 ) B8R

— B33 UEATA R B
AT EE

20144 2201556 #12 A318 - & & A
ANEEBEIRHOE—SHTE  AEE
$35,925,253 (20144 4 $39,290,797) IA
BB AR ZMARAR LA A #H
EREmERS(RME) - BT
B EEFRNIZAFEBEYIE  E
AEEEFEBRERRAFEARSR
B4R »

B E2014F K2015FM12 A31H IEFE
W WESIARE2H e T A ZHD
B F3M e T ANESE A N E
- ZERREERAFEARR M
HIREBRHNREHERE  BREH
i o



(i)

20

(a)

(b)

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 R I =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAE 5T

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) U FEEIEZ 2T AR FIEE
value

The carrying amounts of the Council’s financial instruments 20144 20155 812 A318 + A AR
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different REHK AR EE 2/ EERT
from their fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. B HEFEAQATEELIEEREZR -
Commitments 20 AE&iE

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) R2015F12831H ¥ KB TR R B
2015 not provided for in the financial statements BERPABEBZ2ELXREENT:

were as follows:

Contracted for B4 $53,931,958 $20,363,142

Capital commitments relate to the acquisition or development EARERERBEBEAXNZRDE  #
of property, plant and equipment. as Mkt e

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum (b) 2015128318 FHHUEHN &

lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

EHEHREABINREABEES
ES I N

Within one year R1E R $5,968,672 $5,358,672
After one year but within five years 1F & B5F K 2,340,000 5,358,672
$8,308,672 $10,717,344

The Council is the lessee in respect of a property held under
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of three
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.
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Notes to the financial statements

B 75 S 2% B 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA B # 5T
21 Material related party transactions 21 BEALIXRS

As the Members of the Council were being drawn from private or HRZEKEBRABEXRL LRI AL
public construction industry sector organisations, it is inevitable that 1% @ F e # R HEKEBF HBEOKLEE
transactions will take place with organisations in which a Member 75 ° I K E ek B4 2k B R #E -
may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in PR IESEEEKRA L EZTHRERFETA
which Members of the Council may have an interest, subsisted at 75 7E4F J& 4% #& B 5 45 7O 1 {a] B 8 43 98 A8 2
the end of the year or at any time during the year, were conducted %5 °

on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Council’s

procurement procedures.

During the year, the Council entered into the following transactions FEHEFRNEMEATETTNIRS °

with related parties.

Funding support to Hong Kong Green Building I & B GG EZSEAR

Council Limited NANKRE X FF $12,721,558 $16,636,632
Funding support to Zero Carbon Building HEHRAM (AR EEBATHR

(formerly known as Zero Carbon Building R BRAR) MK ELZF

Limited) 30,333,589 17,052,577

Balances with related parties at the end of the reporting period are 2R &4 REFHEEE A THR S 4 6%

as follows: POINE

Amount due from Hong Kong Green Building EUWEEHGCEEZSHR

Council Limited NAHIRIA $2,385,011 $21,868
Amount due (to)/from Zero Carbon Building FE (), Yo ZH % 3t (BT AR 2

(formerly known as Zero Carbon Building BAEZHRRNMERAR)H

Limited) R I8 (6,884,523) 164,137
22 Comparative figures 22 kBT
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with F &L BEHFEEHF D HEUTAREEN S
the current year’s presentation. R e
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23 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Council.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Annual Improvements to HKFRs
2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods of

1 January 2016
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
customers

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and any new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Council’s financial statements.

175

23 EHEAEMREZ=2015F128318 1t
FERAREMNIEET FHEAR
RENTREE

BEEAMBHREEZRER  BELHAMAE
EEME TSI RAIBER - HEE TR
N RAE E2015F 128318 IEFE A ik
BEAPBHRERIRA o Z ST K2Rk A
ZTEBYN BT

ER Qg
B8k bATR
F18 2
HFE
(BEEMBHREEANFEE 20165F1718
23 (2012201438 H7)
(BB B HmEEA)FE15% 20165F1H1H
(BFTAR)— HE 2
(EBMERELERYE 1655 2016F171R
& %385k (B 5] )
— MERBHEMAZES
AR B E
(BB B HREERDFIR 2018F171H
— 2@ TA
(BRI BIREER)DFE1558 20185F1H1H
— XEEF AW

Z SR FETRE REMAHEER
HEERMYEANTE HEEEARL &
mERMBEBAB TARERZENHBFHRER
BREXEE -

==
BEETHE

BT

-3



Annex
B 15

>
=
=)
c
=R
Eel
@
i =]
s}
=
=
()
o
=
5

o
o
=
wm
3
el
c
o
4
o
P4
=
o
c
(%]
3
e
=
o
[}
c
=
)
-

Number of Higher Paid Staff BEeHzBEEE

The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,000,000 in 720144 & 20154 & X 4 %5 8 18 $1,000,000
2014 and 2015 is shown below: M EEBWT:

2015 2014
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals

BEHE BEHA

$1,000,000 to $3,500,000 $1,000,000 £ $3,500,000 21 22
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